
 
 

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

January 17, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

 
 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda 

 
B.  Council Reports 
 
C.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1.  Vouchers numbered 107878 through 107884 in the total amount of $141,275.95 
2.  Vouchers numbered APA001834 through APA001868 in the total amount of $202,551.72 
3.  Vouchers numbered APA001869 through APA001882 in the total amount of $49,026.21 
4.  Vouchers numbered 107892 through 107950 in the total amount of $168,247.50 
5.  Voucher number 107951 in the total amount of $500.00 
6.  Vouchers numbered APA001883 through APA001899 in the total amount of $76,819.25  
7.  Minutes of Joint Meeting with Mason County Commissioners on November 4, 2022 

      8.  November Financial Status Report 
 
D.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
      The City Council invites members of the public to provide comment on any topic at this time. To make comments in person, please 
        sign in on the public comment sheet and keep an instruction card.  If you would like to comment on a Business or Action item, please 
        list the agenda item number on the list.  To comment virtually using Zoom, please use the “Raise Hand” feature to alert the City Clerk. 
        If you have joined Zoom on your telephone, dial *9 to use the “Raise Hand” feature.  City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter 
        into a dialogue during public comment. If the Council feels an issue requires follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an    
        appropriate time. 
 
E.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
     1.  Resolution No. 1257-1222 Water/Sewer Rate & GFC Study Consultant Contract – Presented by Public  
          Works Director Jay Harris          
     2.  Resolution No. 1258-1222 Public Works Laydown Yard Consultant Design Contract – Presented by Public  
          Works Director Jay Harris          
      
F.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken)  
      

1. Ordinance No. 1994-0922 Park & Open Space Area Requirements for Residential Subdivisions – 
Presented by Parks & Facilities Director Mark Ziegler 

     2.  Resolution No. 1254-1222 Local Road Safety Plan Project Approval & Authorization – Presented by City   
          Engineer Ken Gill      
     3.  Resolution No. 1255-1222 Brockdale Road Resurfacing Improvements Project Award – Presented by City    
          Engineer Ken Gill      
     4.  Resolution No. 1256-1222 Consultant Contract Amendment No. 1 for Brockdale Road Improvement  
          Project – Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill 
     5.  Mason County Jail Services – Presented by Police Chief Carole Beason 
     6.  Resolution No. 1259-1222 Wastewater Fund Property Acquisitions – Presented by Public Works  
          Director Jay Harris        



  
  
G.  Administration Reports 
      1.  City Manager Report 
 
H.  New Items for Discussion 
 
I.  Announcement of Next Meeting – February 7, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
J.  Adjourn 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Note for Virtual Public Participation 
 

The meeting can be viewed at: https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton 

The public can provide comments virtually by: 
Email:  donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov (before 5:00pm the day of the meeting)  

Telephone: (360) 432-5103 (before 5:00pm the day of the meeting) 
Join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the link posted on the City Council’s webpage 

 
Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 

https://www.youtube.com/user/cityofshelton
mailto:donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov


 

Updated 1/11/2023 
 

  
2023 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 1/24 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• Enterprise Fleet Study 

Packet Items Due:  
1/20 @ noon 

Tues. 2/7 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentation 
• Mason County Historical Society Museum 4th 

Quarter LTAC Report 
Business Agenda 

• Resolution No. 1247-1022 Bostrom Lane 
Public Utility & Access Easement 

• Ordinance No. 1996-1022 Council Protocol 
Manual Revisions 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1999-1222 
Rooming Houses 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 2000-1222 
Shoreline Management Program Updates 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 2001-1222 
Flood Damage Prevention Standards Update 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1998-1222 
Peacock Ridge Annexation Request 

• Purchase & Sale Agreement – 13th Street 
Action Agenda 

• Resolution No. 1253-1122 Master Fee 
Schedule Update 

• Repealing Resolution No. 1157-0320 
• Resolution No. 1257-1222 Agreement with 

FCS Group for Water/Sewer Rate and GFC 
Study 

• Resolution No. 1258-1222 Work Order with 
Williams Architecture for Design of Public 
Works Laydown Yard 

• Contract with Olympic Health & Recovery 
Services 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
1/27 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues 2/14 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
2/10 @ noon 

Tues. 2/21 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
• December Financial Status Report 

Business Agenda 
• Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee 

Appointments 
Action Agenda 

Packet Items Due: 
2/10 @ 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 1/11/2023 
 

• Resolution No. 1247-1022 Bostrom Lane 
Public Utility & Access Easement 

• Ordinance No. 1996-1022 Council Protocol 
Manual Revisions 

• Ordinance No. 1999-1222 Rooming Houses 
• Ordinance No. 2000-1222 Shoreline 

Management Program Updates 
• Ordinance No. 2001-1222 Flood Damage 

Prevention Standards Update 
• Ordinance No. 1998-1222 Peacock Ridge 

Annexation Request 
• Purchase & Sale Agreement – 13th Street 

Administration Report 
•  

Tues 2/28 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
2/24 @ noon 

Tues. 3/7 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
2/24 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 3/14 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
3/10 @ noon 

Tues. 3/21 
5:45 p.m. 

Regular SMPD 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
3/10 @ 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 3/21 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
• January Financial Status Report 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
3/10 @ 5:00 p.m. 

 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 
• Water and Sewer Fee Schedule Revisions (Ordinance removing rates from SMC) 
•  Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1990-0522 Amending SMC 17.12 

 

















































































































 
 

SHELTON CITY COUNCIL – MASON COUNTY COMMISIONERS 
Joint Leadership Breakfast – Ridge Motorsports Park 

November 4, 2022 – Meeting Minutes 
9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m. 

 
City Councilmembers:   County Commission:     
Mayor Eric Onisko   Chair Kevin Shutty    
Deputy Mayor Joe Schmit    Randy Neatherlin 
James Boad     Sharon Trask 
Miguel Gutierrez   County Administrator Mark Neary 
Kathy McDowell     
Deidre Peterson 
Sharon Schirman 
City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 9:00 a.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance 

AGENDA 
 
A. Jail Discussion – Potential changes to housing City inmates and future County Jail options 

• Priority prisoners. 
• Staffing limitations create population shortage. 
• Need for short term outsourcing – Nisqually Jail. 
• Long term outsourcing.  
• Options for private/public partnerships. 
• Funding a new jail facility. 
• Property tax levy. 
• Construction options. 
• Engage the community in discussions. 
• City’s inability to get people into the County Jail due to current contract for only seven beds. 
• Possible solution is City contracting with the Nisqually Jail facility for up to 20 beds per month, paid on a per  
  diem basis. 
• Cost and staff availability to transport City inmates to the Nisqually Jail facility. 
• 2023 City Budget – concerns regarding use of reserve funding to outsource jail beds. 
• Jail housing and transportation options at Forks Washington Correctional Facility. 
• Research potential revenue sources to build a new jail. 
• C Street property is approximately 15 acres and available for a jail site if there is interest for a joint city/county  
  partnership. 
• Public safety. 

 
There was agreement by the meeting participants to move forward with establishing a committee to pick up the baton 
from the last research conducted on a jail facility. Undersheriff Adams will take the lead as a startup of the process 
and report back to the leaders at today’s meeting. 
 
B. County property located at Public Works Drive – Intersection of Highway 101 & 102 – Update on market activity 

and discuss potential other uses 
• 6 county parcels adjacent to the County’s new Public Works facility have been declared surplus and are being 
  marketed for commercial use. 
• Preferred use is not for governmental uses. 



 

  
Shelton City Council – Mason County Commission 
November 4, 2022 – Meeting Minutes 
Ridge Motorsports Park  Page 2 of 2 

• City/County joint effort to make it friendly for commercial uses. 
• Develop a sub-area plan to market and present what the City/County would like in order to  

assist developers in deciding to invest. 
• County would like to expand their existing campus in the downtown area. 

 
C. Opportunities to collaborate on the Comprehensive Plan Update 

• State funding options in 2023. 
• Share resources in developing a Comprehensive Plan. 
• Define a shared vision for the City/County to grow in the same direction. 
• Identify infrastructure needs. 

 
D. City update on annexation plans/progress 

• Pending annexation – 395 acres behind Olympic College – potential use is 1,200 new homes over a 10-year 
  timeframe.  

 
E. Sewer capacity at the Satellite Treatment Plant 

• Expansion of Satellite Treatment Plant. 
• Property purchase for installation of a large pump station. 
• Tribal support. 

 
F. Opportunities to collaborate with the creation of Designated Crisis Responders (DCRs) 

• City/County needs local resources of a DCR. 
• Association of Washington Cities – City has applied for a one-year grant funded opportunity.  
• Homelessness Task Force’s recommendation is to have a local DCR. 
• Coordinate joint resources that also includes case management in conjunction with a DCR. 
• Think BIG and ASK for funds to support therapeutic resources. Designated state funds are currently available. 
• Research health and recovery service models for future discussions. 

 
MEETING ADJOURN 
Adjourned at 10:58 a.m.  
 
 
 
___________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko  City Clerk Donna Nault 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

1 

 2022

Revised

Budget 

 2022

thru November 

 2022

Est Actual 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Revenues 15,123,340   14,633,968       15,435,980       312,640             2.1%

Expenditures 16,456,074   13,116,966       15,473,030       983,044             6.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (1,332,734)    1,517,002         (37,050)             1,295,684          

Beginnning Fund Balance 4,777,350     4,777,350         

Ending Fund Balance 3,444,616     4,740,300         

20.9% 28.8%

Ending Fund Balance Breakdown:

Reserved - 20% of Budget 3,291,215     3,291,215         

Unreserved Fund Balance 153,401        1,449,085         

Total Fund Balance 3,444,616     4,740,300         

2022 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

2020 and 2021 amounts included in this report are unaudited.

Est 2022

General Fund Overview

Summary

Analysis through November shows an overall positive budget variance of $1.3 million.

General Fund Reserves are estimated to end the year at $4.7 million, or 28.8% of 2022 budgeted expenditures.

Revenues are currently estimated to end the year approximately $313 thousand, or 2.1% higher than budgeted.

Expenditure Overview

Expenditures are currently estimated to end the year approximately $980 thousand, or 6.0% lower than budgeted.

Revenue Overview 

2,462 

3,677 

3,248 3,310 

4,854 
5,128 

4,740 

 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Est 2022

General Fund Ending Fund Balance History$ in
thousands

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

2 

Revenue Categories

 2022

Revised

Budget 

 2022

thru 

November 

 2022

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Taxes:

  Property 2,535,900     2,533,076       2,535,900        -                      0.0%

  Sales & Use 3,353,860     3,157,553       3,427,600        73,740            2.2%

  City Utility 1,225,750     1,359,877       1,468,500        242,750          19.8%

  Non-City Utility 1,301,400     1,132,598       1,200,580        (100,820)         -7.7%

  Business & Occupation 997,500        925,993          985,000           (12,500)           -1.3%

  Other 40,430          56,126            58,330             17,900            44.3%

Licenses & Permits 296,900        288,880          305,140           8,240              2.8%

Intergovernmental Revenue 1,963,910     2,082,914       2,114,750        150,840          7.7%

Charges for Goods/Services 3,201,890     2,835,326       3,056,180        (145,710)         -4.6%

Fines and Penalties 92,550          48,384            51,380             (41,170)           -44.5%

Miscellaneous Revenue 113,250        213,241          232,620           119,370          105.4%

Total Revenues 15,123,340   14,633,968     15,435,980      312,640          2.1%

*2022 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

Miscellaneous:  Over budget due to Police Department donations and AWC insurance refund

General Fund Overview - Revenues

Variance Notes

Variance analysis for revenues is provided for particular line items or those in which the estimated actual amount differs 

from the budgeted amount by at least 10% and $75,000.

City Utility:  Estimated to be over budget due to June 2021 solid waste utility tax payment that wasn't received until 2022

Property Taxes
16%

Sales & Use Taxes
22%

City Utility Taxes
10%

Non-City Utility Taxes
8%

B & O Taxes
6%

Other Taxes
0% Charges for Goods/Services

20%

Licenses & Permits
2%

Intergovernmental 
Revenue

14%

Fines and Penalties
0%

Miscellaneous 
Revenue

2%

Other
18%

2022 Estimated
General Fund

Revenues

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

3 

Department

 2022

Revised

Budget 

 2022

thru 

November 

 2022

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Administrative Services

Human Resources 326,340         296,644          329,960            (3,620)             -1.1%

Information Technology 372,880         340,252          391,000            (18,120)           -4.9%

Risk Management 132,980         128,100          137,710            (4,730)             -3.6%

City Clerk 272,641         212,429          242,860            29,781            10.9%

City Council 73,540           72,290            78,680              (5,140)             -7.0%

City Manager

City Manager 423,350         337,118          374,500            48,850            11.5%

Legal 345,870         245,712          273,570            72,300            20.9%

Detentions/Corrections-Contract 430,740         308,741          352,000            78,740            18.3%

Community Dev, Parks, Facilities

Civic Center Activities 72,070           46,951            52,390              19,680            27.3%

Community Development 713,878         611,006          708,620            5,258              0.7%

Facility Services 675,460         596,974          666,780            8,680              1.3%

Parks & Recreation 750,700         525,941          601,270            149,430          19.9%

Finance 1,218,630      939,335          1,073,940         144,690          11.9%

Fire & Emergency Services 1,652,740      1,546,598       1,689,720         (36,980)           -2.2%

Municipal Court 740,230         610,588          669,970            70,260            9.5%

Non-Departmental 3,460,293      2,223,712       3,262,540         197,753          5.7%

Police 3,857,404      3,274,706       3,671,730         185,674          4.8%

Public Works 936,328         799,868          895,790            40,538            4.3%

16,456,074    13,116,966     15,473,030       983,044          6.0%

*2022 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

General Fund Overview - Expenditures

Parks Dept and Finance Dept below budget due to positions not filled until late in year.

Variance Notes

Total Expenditures

Variance analysis for expenditures is provided for particular departments which have an estimated actual amount that differs 

from the budgeted amount by at least 10% and $75,000.

Detention/Corrections:  Mason County Jail fees estimated to be below budget.

Benefits

13%

Other

9%

Professional Services

22%

Transfers-Out

21%

Wages
35%

2022 Estimated General Fund Expenditures

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

4 

 2020

Actual 

 2021

Actual 

 2022 Revised

Budget 

2022

thru November

2022

Est Actual

Beginning Fund Balance 3,295,980     4,853,568      4,777,350        4,777,350            4,777,350       

Revenues

Taxes:

  Property 2,495,035     2,502,891      2,535,900        2,533,076            2,535,900       

  Sales & Use 3,195,310     3,368,713      3,353,860        3,157,553            3,427,600       

  City Utility 1,182,935     1,241,561      1,225,750        1,359,877            1,468,500       

  Non-City Utility 1,138,999     1,165,125      1,301,400        1,132,598            1,200,580       

  Business & Occupation 810,806        980,007         997,500           925,993               985,000          

  Other 42,140          56,304           40,430             56,126                 58,330            

Licenses & Permits 344,354        281,260         296,900           288,880               305,140          

Intergovernmental Revenue 1,191,866     2,240,637      1,963,910        2,082,914            2,114,750       

Charges for Goods/Services 2,968,830     2,904,696      3,201,890        2,835,326            3,056,180       

Fines and Penalties 85,070          78,453           92,550             48,384                 51,380            

Miscellaneous Revenue 281,387        141,622         113,250           213,241               232,620          

Total Revenues 13,736,732   14,961,268    15,123,340      14,633,968          15,435,980     

Expenditures

Administrative Services

Human Resources 259,988        259,811         326,340           296,644               329,960          

Information Technology 811,857        279,243         372,880           340,252               391,000          

Risk Management 95,234          115,849         132,980           128,100               137,710          

City Clerk+ 69,707          198,328         272,641           212,429               242,860          

City Council 161,137        100,744         73,540             72,290                 78,680            

City Manager

City Manager 429,282        385,264         423,350           337,118               374,500          

Legal 315,307        286,726         345,870           245,712               273,570          

Detentions/Corrections-Contract 331,015        314,238         430,740           308,741               352,000          

Community Dev, Parks, Facilities

Civic Center Activities 44,892          50,348           72,070             46,951                 52,390            

Community Development 551,607        547,944         649,618           611,006               708,620          

Facility Services 516,129        524,991         675,460           596,974               666,780          

Parks & Recreation 376,383        521,872         750,700           525,941               601,270          

Finance 939,517        928,469         1,218,630        939,335               1,073,940       

Fire & Emergency Services 1,626,514     1,560,701      1,652,740        1,546,598            1,689,720       

Municipal Court 498,380        528,267         740,230           610,588               669,970          

Non-Departmental 1,029,993     4,252,217      3,460,293        2,223,712            3,262,540       

Police 3,451,151     3,482,542      3,921,664        3,274,706            3,671,730       

Public Works 671,052        699,932         936,328           799,868               895,790          

12,179,144   15,037,485    16,456,074      13,116,966          15,473,030     
+ City Clerk  reflects all City Clerk  expenses starting in 2021.  Prior years included records, elections and code revison costs.

Net Revenues less Expenditures 1,557,588     (76,217)          (1,332,734)       1,517,002            (37,050)          

Ending Fund Balance 4,853,568     4,777,350      3,444,616        6,294,352            4,740,300       

General Fund Reserves 4,853,568     4,777,350      3,444,616        4,740,300       

based on same year actuals/budget 39.9% 31.8% 20.9% 30.6%

General Fund Year-to-Year 

Total Expenditures

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

5 

 2020

thru

November 

 2021

thru

November 

 2022

thru

November 

% of

Budget

Revenues

Taxes:

  Property 2,486,310      2,487,018        2,533,076        46,058       1.9% 99.9%

  Sales & Use 2,916,469      3,094,781        3,157,553        62,772       2.0% 94.1%

  City Utility 1,072,149      1,131,388        1,359,877        228,489     20.2% 110.9%

  Non-City Utility 1,064,682      1,088,077        1,132,598        44,521       4.1% 87.0%

  Business & Occupation 773,564         931,161           925,993           (5,167)        -0.6% 92.8%

  Other 36,499           48,640             56,126             7,486         15.4% 138.8%

Licenses & Permits 331,509         268,952           288,880           19,928       7.4% 97.3%

Intergovernmental Revenue 862,432         2,047,764        2,082,914        35,150       1.7% 106.1%

Charges for Goods/Services 2,752,426      2,678,364        2,835,326        156,962     5.9% 88.6%

Fines and Penalties 74,860           74,552             48,384             (26,168)      -35.1% 52.3%

Miscellaneous Revenue 266,788         131,529           213,241           81,712       62.1% 188.3%

Total Revenues 12,637,688    13,982,225      14,633,968      651,742     4.7% 96.8%

Expenditures

Administrative Services

Human Resources 234,513         229,160           296,644           67,484       29.4% 90.9%

Information Technology 550,511         254,940           340,252           85,312       33.5% 91.2%

Risk Management 89,431           108,400           128,100           19,700       18.2% 96.3%

City Clerk+ 64,922           184,514           212,429           27,915       15.1% 77.9%

City Council 148,347         92,851             72,290             (20,561)      -22.1% 98.3%

City Manager

City Manager 398,072         348,237           337,118           (11,118)      -3.2% 79.6%

Legal 285,982         225,247           245,712           20,465       9.1% 71.0%

Detentions/Corrections-Contract 295,566         256,389           308,741           52,352       20.4% 71.7%

Community Dev, Parks, Facilities

Civic Center Activities 41,218           46,460             46,951             491            1.1% 65.1%

Community Development 566,692         546,022           611,006           64,984       11.9% 94.1%

Facility Services 473,738         471,824           596,974           125,150     26.5% 88.4%

Parks & Recreation 349,269         467,217           525,941           58,723       12.6% 70.1%

Finance 833,270         919,152           939,335           20,183       2.2% 77.1%

Fire & Emergency Services 1,459,817      1,432,177        1,546,598        114,421     8.0% 93.6%

Municipal Court 451,771         483,675           610,588           126,913     26.2% 82.5%

Non-Departmental 884,908         2,991,210        2,223,712        (767,498)    -25.7% 64.3%

Police 3,045,225      3,138,383        3,274,706        136,323     4.3% 83.5%

Public Works 661,332         611,032           799,868           188,836     30.9% 85.4%

10,834,584    12,806,891      13,116,966      310,075     2.4% 79.7%

+ City Clerk  reflects all City Clerk  expenses starting in 2021.  Prior years included records, elections and code revison costs.

This Month-to-Month presentation does not include variance notes.  Common variances are due to timing of receipts and

expenditures.  Totals reported are year-to-date through November which is 91.7% of the year.

General Fund Month-to-Month

Total Expenditures

2022 - 2021

Variance

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

6 

Sales Tax Breakdown by Type

Retail, 50.3%

Wholesale, 7.1%

Manufacturing, 2.5%

Construction, 8.4%

Food/Entertainment, 11.9%

Professional Services, 14.5%

All Other, 5.3%

2022 thru November

Retail, 45.0%

Wholesale, 8.1%

Manufacturing, 6.0%

Construction, 10.9%

Food/Entertainment, 11.9%

Professional Services, 12.9%

All Other, 5.2%

November 2022

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

7 

Fund

 2022

Beginning

Fund 

Balance 

 2022

Estimated

Revenue 

 2022

Estimated

Expenditure 

2022

Estimated

Fund Balance $ Change

 %

Change 

City-wide Fund Balances

General Fund 4,777,350     15,435,980    15,473,030      4,740,300       (37,050)          -0.8%

Street Fund 423,415        1,890,180      1,937,720        375,875          (47,540)          -11.2%

Capital Resource Funds

    Real Estate Excise Tax -1 356,027        194,400         46,830             503,597          147,570          41.4%

    Real Estate Excise Tax -2 395,753        194,800         -                       590,553          194,800          49.2%

    Transport Benefit District 1,302,997     509,200         385,390           1,426,807       123,810          9.5%

    Traffic Impact Fees 997,437        110,020         414,100           693,357          (304,080)        -30.5%

    General Resources 1,649,409     2,244,390      2,494,410        1,399,389       (250,020)        -15.2%

Tourism Fund 89,620          64,560           65,000             89,180            (440)               -0.5%

Bond Fund 7,618            177,380         177,410           7,588              (30)                 -0.4%

Capital Improvement Fund 879,714        1,510,920      1,511,440        879,194          (520)               -0.1%

Water Fund 1,650,758     3,090,400      2,802,264        1,938,894       288,136          17.5%

Water Capital Fund 1,146,128     1,687,344      1,788,690        1,044,782       (101,346)        -8.8%

Sewer Fund 3,664,095     6,869,210      6,378,840        4,154,465       490,370          13.4%

Sewer Capital Fund 1,308,976     810,000         986,332           1,132,644       (176,332)        -13.5%

Solid Waste Fund 1,015,514     68,550           134,000           950,064          (65,450)          -6.4%

Storm Drainage Fund 391,777        1,459,870      1,265,035        586,612          194,835          49.7%

Storm Drainage Capital Fund 25,871          408,630         285,660           148,841          122,970          475.3%

Payroll Benefits Fund 167,652        84,000           57,380             194,272          26,620            15.9%

Equipment Rental Fund 593,494        682,340         751,630           524,204          (69,290)          -11.7%

Firefighters Pension Fund 479,800        13,030           68,400             424,430          (55,370)          -11.5%

Library Endowment Fund 122,099        750                -                       122,849          750                 0.6%

City-wide Fund Totals 21,445,504   37,505,954    37,023,561      21,927,897     482,393          2.2%

Fund Balances

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

8 

   Fund

 2022

Revised

Budget 

 2022

thru

November 

 2022

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

General Fund

Taxes 9,454,840        9,165,224        9,675,910        221,070          2.3%

Licenses & Permits 296,900           288,880           305,140           8,240              2.8%

Intergovernmental Revenue 1,963,910        2,082,914        2,114,750        150,840          7.7%

Charges for Goods/Services 3,201,890        2,835,326        3,056,180        (145,710)         -4.6%

Fines and Penalties 92,550             48,384             51,380             (41,170)           -44.5%

Miscellaneous Revenue 113,250           213,241           232,620           119,370          105.4%

Total Revenues 15,123,340      14,633,968      15,435,980      312,640          2.1%

Wages 5,650,500        4,841,501        5,377,740        272,760          4.8%

Benefits 2,311,350        1,878,343        2,065,420        245,930          10.6%

Professional Services 3,629,306        2,982,010        3,423,370        205,936          5.7%

Transfers-Out 3,397,793        2,124,921        3,163,220        234,573          6.9%

Other 1,467,125        1,290,191        1,443,280        23,845            1.6%

Total Expenditures 16,456,074      13,116,966      15,473,030      983,044          6.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (1,332,734)       1,517,002        (37,050)            1,295,684       

Street Fund

Taxes 675,000           641,983           695,000           20,000            3.0%

Licenses & Permits 5,500               12,921             14,100             8,600              156.4%

Intergovernmental Revenue 214,000           190,259           206,220           (7,780)             -3.6%

Charges for Goods/Services 56,120             50,527             55,120             (1,000)             -1.8%

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,500               35,133             35,740             34,240            2282.7%

Transfers In 934,510           -                       884,000           (50,510)           -5.4%

Total Revenues 1,886,630        930,823           1,890,180        3,550              0.2%

Wages 336,610           275,910           300,980           35,630            10.6%

Benefits 159,370           128,746           140,430           18,940            11.9%

Professional Services 174,990           184,200           202,010           (27,020)           -15.4%

Transfers-Out 500,000           -                       500,000           -                      0.0%

Other 825,240           699,258           794,300           30,940            3.7%

Total Expenditures 1,996,210        1,288,113        1,937,720        58,490            2.9%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (109,580)          (357,290)          (47,540)            62,040            

Capital Resources - Real Estate Excise Tax - 1 (REET-1)

Taxes 52,500             182,216           190,000           137,500          261.9%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       4,207               4,400               4,400               

Total Revenues 52,500             186,423           194,400           141,900          270.3%

Transfers-Out 46,830             11,999             46,830             -                      0.0%

Total Expenditures 46,830             11,999             46,830             -                      0.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures 5,670               174,424           147,570           141,900          

*2022 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

9 

   Fund

 2022

Revised

Budget 

 2022

thru

November 

 2022

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Capital Resources - Real Estate Excise Tax - 2 (REET-2)

Taxes 52,500             182,216           190,000           137,500          261.9%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       4,680               4,800               4,800               

Total Revenues 52,500             186,897           194,800           142,300          271.0%

Total Expenditures -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net Revenues Less Expenditures 52,500             186,897           194,800           142,300          

Capital Resources -Transportation Benefit District (TBD)

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       8,830               9,200               9,200               

Transfers In 500,000           -                       500,000           -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 500,000           8,830               509,200           9,200              1.8%

Transfers-Out 385,390           385,390           385,390           -                      0.0%

Total Expenditures 385,390           385,390           385,390           -                      0.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures 114,610           (376,560)          123,810           9,200              

Capital Resources - Traffic Impact Fees (TIF)

Charges for Goods/Services 80,000             94,890             103,520           23,520            29.4%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       6,391               6,500               6,500               

Total Revenues 80,000             101,281           110,020           30,020            37.5%

Transfers-Out 414,100           414,100           414,100           -                      0.0%

Total Expenditures 414,100           414,100           414,100           -                      0.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (334,100)          (312,819)          (304,080)          30,020            

Capital Resources - General

Intergovernmental Revenue 445,780           445,780           -                      0.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       9,546               10,000             10,000             

Transfers In 1,488,610        1,788,613        1,788,610        300,000          20.2%

Total Revenues 1,934,390        1,798,159        2,244,390        310,000          16.0%

Transfers-Out 2,139,500        2,139,500        2,139,500        -                      0.0%

Other 534,830           89,049             354,910           179,920          33.6%

Total Expenditures 2,674,330        2,228,549        2,494,410        179,920          6.7%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (739,940)          (430,390)          (250,020)          489,920          

Tourism Fund

Taxes 48,000             58,307             63,610             15,610            32.5%

Miscellaneous Revenue 100                  919                  950                  850                 850.0%

Total Revenues 48,100             59,226             64,560             16,460            34.2%

Professional Services 65,758             59,067             65,000             758                 1.2%

Total Expenditures 65,758             59,067             65,000             758                 1.2%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (17,658)            159                  (440)                 17,218            

*2022 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures

 

 

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

10 

   Fund

 2022

Revised

Budget 

 2022

thru

November 

 2022

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Bond Fund

Taxes -                       79                    80                    80                    

Transfers In 177,300           46,150             177,300           -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 177,300           46,229             177,380           80                   0.0%

Other 177,300           46,255             177,410           (110)                -0.1%

Total Expenditures 177,300           46,255             177,410           (110)                -0.1%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       (26)                   (30)                   (30)                  

Capital Improvement Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 1,974,310        150,633           413,880           (1,560,430)      -79.0%

Charges for Goods/Services 59,000             -                       24,000             (35,000)           -59.3%

Transfers In 1,403,043        1,073,043        1,073,040        (330,003)         -23.5%

Total Revenues 3,436,353        1,223,676        1,510,920        (1,925,433)      -56.0%

Professional Services -                       103,339           112,670           (112,670)          

Other 3,136,353        1,019,550        1,398,770        1,737,583       1.3%

Total Expenditures 3,136,353        1,122,889        1,511,440        1,624,913       51.8%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures 300,000           100,787           (520)                 (300,520)         

Water Fund

Charges for Goods/Services 2,596,210        2,703,507        2,914,670        318,460          12.3%

Miscellaneous Revenue 46,100             154,023           175,730           129,630          281.2%

Total Revenues 2,642,310        2,857,530        3,090,400        448,090          17.0%

Wages 591,090           505,060           560,970           30,120            5.1%

Benefits 259,560           220,348           240,370           19,190            7.4%

Professional Services 103,940           143,058           156,060           (52,120)           -50.1%

Transfers-Out 172,844           172,844           172,844           -                      0.0%

Other 1,692,520        1,307,412        1,672,020        20,500            1.2%

Total Expenditures 2,819,954        2,348,722        2,802,264        17,690            0.6%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (177,644)          508,808           288,136           465,780          

Water Capital Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 1,050,000        -                       -                       (1,050,000)      -100.0%

Transfers In 1,687,344        1,687,344        1,687,344        -                      0.0%

Total Revenues 2,737,344        1,687,344        1,687,344        (1,050,000)      -38.4%

Other 2,737,344        1,089,628        1,788,690        948,654          34.7%

Total Expenditures 2,737,344        1,089,628        1,788,690        948,654          34.7%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       597,716           (101,346)          (101,346)         

*2022 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures

 



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

11 

   Fund

 2022

Revised

Budget 

 2022

thru

November 

 2022

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Sewer Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue -                       16,381             17,870             17,870             

Charges for Goods/Services 6,234,660        6,012,655        6,492,640        257,980          4.1%

Miscellaneous Revenue 133,000           357,597           358,700           225,700          169.7%

Total Revenues 6,367,660        6,386,634        6,869,210        501,550          7.9%

Wages 788,100           682,859           744,930           43,170            5.5%

Benefits 369,070           317,049           345,850           23,220            6.3%

Professional Services 339,000           292,247           318,810           20,190            6.0%

Transfers-Out 153,928           410,000           410,000           (256,072)         -166.4%

Other 4,800,050        4,000,781        4,559,250        240,800          5.0%

Total Expenditures 6,450,148        5,702,937        6,378,840        71,308            1.1%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (82,488)            683,697           490,370           572,858          

Sewer Capital Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 2,050,000        -                       -                       (2,050,000)      -100.0%

Transfers In 553,928           810,000           810,000           256,072          46.2%

Total Revenues 2,603,928        810,000           810,000           256,072          9.8%

Other 2,603,928        790,053           986,332           1,617,596       62.1%

Total Expenditures 2,603,928        790,053           986,332           1,617,596       62.1%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       19,947             (176,332)          (176,332)         

Solid Waste Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 600,000           59,452             59,450             (540,550)         -90.1%

Miscellaneous Revenue -                       9,097               9,100               9,100               

Total Revenues 600,000           68,549             68,550             (531,450)         -88.6%

Professional Services 300,000           110,033           130,030           169,970          56.7%

Other 986,540           3,636               3,970               982,570          99.6%

Total Expenditures 1,286,540        113,668           134,000           1,152,540       89.6%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (686,540)          (45,119)            (65,450)            621,090          

Storm Drainage Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue 25,000             4,827               4,830               (20,170)           -80.7%

Charges for Goods/Services 1,537,340        1,336,128        1,446,740        (90,600)           -5.9%

Miscellaneous Revenue 500                  7,920               8,300               7,800              1560.0%

Total Revenues 1,562,840        1,348,875        1,459,870        (102,970)         -6.6%

Wages 491,780           289,301           336,600           155,180          31.6%

Benefits 217,980           127,290           147,350           70,630            32.4%

Professional Services 93,230             36,504             44,820             48,410            51.9%

Transfers-Out 95,035             95,035             177,035           (82,000)           -86.3%

Other 583,810           503,108           559,230           24,580            4.2%

Total Expenditures 1,481,835        1,051,238        1,265,035        216,800          14.6%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures 81,005             297,637           194,835           113,830          

Storm Drainage Capital Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue -                       28,788             88,590             88,590             

Transfers In 320,035           320,035           320,040           5                     0.0%

Total Revenues 320,035           348,823           408,630           88,595            27.7%

Other 320,035           104,966           285,660           34,375            10.7%

Total Expenditures 320,035           104,966           285,660           34,375            10.7%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       243,857           122,970           122,970          

*2022 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures



 

 

November 2022 Monthly Financial Report 
City of Shelton, Washington 

12 

   Fund

 2022

Revised

Budget 

 2022

thru

November 

 2022

Est Actual* 

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

% Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

Payroll Benefits Fund

Charges for Goods/Services 40,000             42,374             46,220             6,220              15.6%

Miscellaneous Revenue 350                  1,557               1,700               1,350              385.7%

Transfers In 160,650           28,604             36,080             (124,570)         -77.5%

Total Revenues 201,000           72,534             84,000             (117,000)         -58.2%

Benefits 201,000           48,013             57,380             143,620          71.5%

Total Expenditures 201,000           48,013             57,380             143,620          71.5%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures -                       24,521             26,620             26,620            

Equipment Maint & Rental Fund

Intergovernmental Revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       

Charges for Goods/Services 578,000           621,537           678,040           100,040          17.3%

Miscellaneous Revenue 5,000               4,161               4,300               (700)                -14.0%

Total Revenues 583,000           625,699           682,340           99,340            17.0%

Wages 95,210             87,402             95,550             (340)                -0.4%

Benefits 46,890             42,061             45,890             1,000              2.1%

Professional Services 36,510             23,426             25,560             10,950            30.0%

Other 713,840           499,700           584,630           129,210          18.1%

Total Expenditures 892,450           652,588           751,630           140,820          15.8%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (309,450)          (26,890)            (69,290)            240,160          

Firefighter's Pension Fund

Taxes 100                  -                       -                       (100)                -100.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 12,000             12,895             13,030             1,030              8.6%

Transfers In 80,000             -                       -                       (80,000)           -100.0%

Total Revenues 92,100             12,895             13,030             (79,070)           -85.9%

Benefits 97,100             62,717             68,400             28,700            29.6%

Professional Services 5,000               -                       -                       5,000              100.0%

Total Expenditures 102,100           62,717             68,400             33,700            33.0%

Net Revenues Less Expenditures (10,000)            (49,821)            (55,370)            (45,370)           

Library Endowment Fund

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,600               723                  750                  (850)                -53.1%

Total Revenues 1,600               723                  750                  (850)                -53.1%

Total Expenditures -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net Revenues Less Expenditures 1,600               723                  750                  (850)                

*2022 estimated actuals are based on historical data, YTD activity, known adjustments and are not year-end actuals.

Revenues & Expenditures:  Estimated expenditures for benefits have decreased and transfers in are adjusted accordingly.

Revenues:  Current estimate does not include a transfer-in from general fund in 2022.

City-Wide Overview - Revenues & Expenditures

Firefighters Pension Fund Notes

Payroll Benefits Fund Notes

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item E1) 
Touch Date: 12/22/2022 
Brief Date:       01/17/2023 
Action Date:  02/07/2023 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris, Public Works Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Water and Sewer Rate and GFC Study 
Consultant Contract 
  
 ATTACHMENTS:  
 - Resolution No. 1257-1222 
 - FCS Group Water-Sewer Rate & 

GFC Study Proposal  
   
 
  

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head   

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 
 
City Manager 

 
 

  
 

 
     
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
In 2017 the City of Shelton completed the water and sewer rate studies for the 2018-2023 rate period. Both 

the water and sewer comprehensive plan updates are nearly complete, and the short and long-term capital 
improvement projects have been identified. The 2024-2029 water and sewer rates and general facilities 
charges (GFC’s) studies are proposed to be prepared by a consultant and are proposed to be reviewed and 
adopted by Council later this year. City staff has selected Financial Consulting Solutions Group, Inc. (FCS) to 
perform the rate study, as FCS recently completed the rate and GFC study for the City stormwater fund. Barring 
any major setbacks, FCS will present their findings to the Council this spring with Council adoption of the new 
water and sewer rates is planned for public meetings in July and August. 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  

Council could choose to not move forward with the rate study. The current sewer and water rate schedules 
end in 2023 and a rate increase for inflation or capital improvement projects would not occur for FY 2024.  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
   The estimated cost for FCS to complete the work is $74,265.00, refer to the attached proposal. The rate 
review project was included in the FY 2021 budget, but staff postponed the project until the Water and Sewer 
Comprehensive Plans were near completion. The 2021 budgeted amounts for the rate study did not carry 
forward to future budget years and the 2023 adopted budget will need to be modified to include the rate study in 
a future supplemental budget adopted by Council. The project funding is proposed to be equally split between 
the water and sewer professional service line items. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

Staff recommends: “I move to place Resolution No. 1257-1222 on the action agenda of the February 7th 

council meeting”.     
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1257-1222 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH FCS GROUP 

FOR A SEWER AND WATER RATE AND GFC STUDY IN THE AMOUNT OF $74,265.00 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City last completed a sewer and water rate study in 2017, for the 2018-2023 rate 
structure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Water and Sewer Comprehensive plans are near completion that identify the short 
term and long term capital improvement projects; and   
 
WHEREAS, water and sewer rate and GFC revenues need to be regularly adjusted to account for 
inflation and capital project needs; and  
 
WHEREAS, City staff has selected Financial Consulting Solutions Group, Inc. (FCS) to perform the rate 
study, as FCS recently completed the rate and GFC study for the City stormwater fund. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager is 
authorized to sign the professional services contract with FCS Group in the amount of $74,265.00 and 
approve all change orders up to 10% of the contract amount. 
  
INTRODUCED on the 17th day of January 2023 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting held on 
the 7th day of February 2023. 

 
 
 
                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Onisko  
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  

 

 

 



Firm Headquarters 
Redmond Town Center 
7525 166th Ave NE, Ste D-215 
Redmond, Washington 98052 

Established in 1988 
Washington | 425.867.1802 

Oregon | 503.841.6543 
Colorado | 719.284.9168 

 

CITY OF SHELTON 
WATER & SEWER REVENUE REQUIREMENT & GFC STUDY 

The following work plan has been developed to complete a revenue requirement and general 
facilities charge (GFC) study for the City of Shelton (City). A revenue requirement analysis 
determines what level of rate revenue is needed to cover each utility’s costs, including operating 
expenditures, debt service, capital expenditures, and policy reserves. A GFC analysis determines a 
maximum, defensible GFC so that the City can recover a proportionate share of the cost of existing 
and future system assets from new customers, as growth occurs. 

TASK PLAN 

Task 1 | Data Collection / Kickoff Meeting 
FCS GROUP will submit a request for needed data and arrange for a kickoff meeting with City staff 
to set a course for completing the work. This project kickoff meeting will provide an opportunity for 
the project team to identify and discuss key policy and technical issues to be addressed in the study, 
along with any data questions. We will review, analyze, and validate the data received and identify 
any data limitations, gaps, or issues of concern.  

DELIVERABLES TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 
 Submit a written request for the data needed to complete the study. Review and validate the data. 
 Attend one (1) remote kickoff meeting with key staff from the City. 
 Perform routine project administration tasks such as invoicing and monthly status reports. 

Task 2 | Policy Framework 
FCS GROUP will write a brief issue summary for up to two (2) topics. In each paper, FCS GROUP 
will define and analyze the issue, present alternative solutions (including industry standards, if 
applicable), and recommend a course of action. FCS GROUP will participate in a meeting with City 
staff to review draft issue papers and then meet with City Council during a study session to discuss 
the contract customers issue paper. 
Final versions will be provided that incorporate feedback. City staff will select the topics for each 
paper, but the following issues are of particular interest to the City at this time: 
 Contract Customers. The City currently has service contracts with two outside-City customers. 

The City would like us to review the contracts, compare the contracts with how the customers are 
currently being billed, and evaluate if the current billing practices are up to date and in line with 
said contracts.  

 Water Rate Structures. The City would like a qualitative evaluation of its water rate structures 
and resulting revenues to determine if its current water rate structures are generally fair and 



City of Shelton  December 2022 
Scope for Water & Sewer Revenue Requirement & GFC Study page 2 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

consistent with industry practice. The City is also interested in an evaluation of its fixed versus 
volume rate revenues, more specifically, the balance between those revenues. Anecdotally, the 
City’s revenue profile (fixed vs. variable) will be compared to typical industry practice. 

DELIVERABLES TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 
 Draft and final issue papers. Up to two (2) issue summary papers (electronic [Word] files). 
 Prepare for and attend one (1) remote review meeting with City staff to discuss papers. 
 Prepare for and attend one (1) remote City Council study session to discuss the contract customer 

issue paper. 

Task 3 | Water & Sewer Revenue Requirements Analyses 
After the City has provided the information requested in the data request list and after the kickoff 
meeting, FCS GROUP will analyze the revenue requirements for the water and sewer utilities. The 
revenue requirement is defined as the total amount of rate revenue needed to meet an enterprise’s 
financial obligations, including capital, operating, and policy-driven commitments. The results of the 
revenue requirement analyses will be the recommended percentage adjustments needed to meet the 
obligations of each service. The analysis will include up to a 20-year forecast. 

DELIVERABLES TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 
 Financial Policies Evaluation. Review the City’s financial policies that have a bearing on utility 

fiscal management (e.g., operating and capital reserves, capital funding strategies, and debt 
management). 

 Operating Forecast. Forecast operating costs based on the most recent budget document 
available. Also, incorporate growth forecasts, integrate additional operating expenses, if any, 
resulting from the capital plan, and any other known changes in operational requirements. 

 Capital Funding Strategy. Develop a capital funding strategy for the capital programs in each 
utility. The analysis will take into account key variables such as project costs, project timing, 
potential borrowing and financing options, and resulting cash flow and cash balances. 

 Financial Strategy Analysis. 
» Integrate financial policies, capital financing impacts, and the operating forecast to develop 

an annual financial forecast over the study period (up to twenty years).  
» Compare forecasted financial needs against forecasted revenue under each utility’s existing 

rates to determine what level of rate adjustments might be needed to keep each utility 
sufficiently funded throughout the study period. 

» The rate adjustments resulting from this task are assumed to be applied “across-the-board” to 
each utility’s existing rate structure. “Across-the-board” means that all rates to all customer 
classes increase by the same percentage. 

» This scope allows for up to three (3) revenue requirement scenarios per utility. 
 Rate Survey. Single-family water and sewer charge survey for up to six (6) jurisdictions chosen 

by the City. 
 Meet twice with City staff to review revenue requirement findings (2 remote). 



City of Shelton  December 2022 
Scope for Water & Sewer Revenue Requirement & GFC Study page 3 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

Task 4 | Water, Reclaimed Water, & Sewer General Facilities Charges 
This task supports an update to the City’s water, reclaimed water, and sewer general facilities 
charges (GFCs) to ensure that the City recovers an appropriate level of capital costs from 
development, as growth occurs. This task will not change how the City scales up its charges (i.e., 
meter size). Following are the steps to update the GFCs. 
 Capacity Base. Using available information, FCS GROUP will derive the applicable capacity 

base (the denominator in the GFC calculation) for each utility. 
 Existing Facilities Component. FCS GROUP will calculate the existing facilities component of 

the connection charge for each utility using financial and engineering data provided by the City. 
 Future Facilities Component. FCS GROUP will calculate the future facilities component for each 

utility using cost and engineering information collected and refined (as necessary) from the 
capital improvement plans, recent system plans, and with the input of City staff. 

 Calculate the maximum allowable charges per single-family residential equivalent for each 
utility, assumed to be the smallest meter size served by the City – 3/4” x 3/4”. These charges will 
be compared with and evaluated against the current charges for each meter size. The charges for 
larger developments within the City scale up based on meter size and this analysis would scale up 
the charges based on the existing multipliers by meter size. 

 Single-family GFC comparison for up to six (6) jurisdictions chosen by City staff. 

DELIVERABLES TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 
 Updated schedule of water, reclaimed water, and sewer GFCs by meter sizes. 
 GFC comparison survey. 
 Meet once with City staff to review GFC findings (1 remote). 

Task 5 | City Council Meetings 
FCS GROUP will present and discuss study results at two (2) remote City Council meetings.  

DELIVERABLES TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 
 Prepare presentation materials for the Council meetings. 
 FCS GROUP will present and discuss study results at two (2) remote Council meetings. 

Task 6 | Documentation 
FCS GROUP will document findings in a comprehensive study report and provide a copy of the 
spreadsheet analyses for future use by City staff. 

DELIVERABLES TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 
 Draft Report. After completing the analytical tasks, FCS GROUP will provide up to two (2) draft 

report iterations for City review. The report will summarize the methodology and analysis 
undertaken in completing the project, the results and conclusions of the study, and noted 
recommendations.  

 Final Report. Upon receipt of comments from the City, FCS GROUP will incorporate the 
comments, as appropriate, into a Final Report to be submitted to the City. FCS GROUP will 
submit one electronic copy.  



City of Shelton  December 2022 
Scope for Water & Sewer Revenue Requirement & GFC Study page 4 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

 Spreadsheet Model. FCS GROUP will deliver a final copy of the Excel-based spreadsheet model. 

Task 7 | Management Contingency 
A project contingency to address unforeseen issues during this study. This task and associated budget 
will only be utilized upon receiving written approval by the City. 

SCHEDULE 
Completion of the analysis is based on a variety of issues, including timeliness of receipt of 
requested data, quality of data, ability to schedule meetings in a timely manner, and the ability of 
City staff to provide policy direction for the study to move forward at key study milestones. The 
study assumes getting under contract in early February 2023 and having a study kickoff meeting in 
mid to late February. Since the City already has rates adopted through 2023, a study kickoff in 
February 2023 would still allow us to complete the rate study in 2023 with a January 1, 2024 rate 
implementation date in mind. 

 

BUDGET 
The table below summarizes our estimated cost to complete the task plan: $74,265. The detailed 
estimates are for planning purposes only – the “not to exceed” amount refers to the total contract, not 
any given task. Meetings in this budget are assumed to be remote meetings and have been budgeted 
accordingly (no travel). We would be happy to attend onsite meetings, with a budget amendment to 
cover additional travel. 

Task Description Mtgs

1 Data Collection / Kickoff Meeting 1

2 Policy Analysis 2

3 Water and Sewer Revenue Requirement Analyses 2

4 Water, Reclaimed Water, & Sewer GFCs 1

5 City Council Meetings 2

6 Documentation

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Sep OctJul Aug



City of Shelton  December 2022 
Scope for Water & Sewer Revenue Requirement & GFC Study page 5 

 www.fcsgroup.com 

 
  

Consultant Hours
Project Project Admin Total Total 

Principal Manager Analyst Support Hours Budget
Task Description (meetings) $280 $215 $155 $90

Task 1  Data Collection / Kickoff Meeting 
Data request & follow-up 2 8 10 1,670$     
Project kickoff meeting (1) remote 1 2 2 5 1,020       
Project administration 1 6 3 10 1,840       

4,530$     
Task 2 Policy Analysis

Write two issue summaries 2 6 16 24 4,330$     
Meet with staff (1) remote 2 2 2 6 1,300       
City Council study session & materials (1) remote 2 4 8 14 2,660       

8,290$     
Task 3 Water and Sewer Revenue Requirement Analyses

Financial policy framework 1 1 4 6 1,115$     
Capital funding strategy 1 4 16 21 3,620       
Operating forecast 1 4 16 21 3,620       
Revenue needs assessment 3 12 56 71 12,100     
Across-the-board rate forecast 1 4 8 13 2,380       
Meet with staff (2) remote: including materials 4 4 2 10 2,290       
Rate comparison survey 1 4 5 835          

25,960$   
Task 4 Water, Reclaimed Water, & Sewer GFCs

Develop capacity bases 1 2 8 11 1,950$     
Develop existing facilities cost bases 1 4 24 29 4,860       
Develop future facilities cost bases 1 4 22 27 4,550       
Calculate GFCs 2 4 8 14 2,660       
Meet with staff (1) remote: including materials 2 3 4 9 1,825       
Develop GFC comparison survey 1 4 5 835          

16,680$   
Task 5 City Council Meetings

City Council presentation materials 2 6 14 22 4,020$     
City Council meetings (2) remote 4 4 8 1,980       

6,000$     
Task 6 Documentation

Draft report 2 6 20 28 4,950$     
Final report 1 2 4 7 1,330       
Computer spreadsheets 1 2 3 525          

6,805$     
Task 7 Management Contingency

Management Contingency 2 8 24 34 6,000$     
6,000$     

Total 37 97 276 3 413 74,265$   



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item E2) 
Touch Date: 06/14/2022 
Brief Date:       01/17/2023 
Action Date:  02/07/2023 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris, Public Works Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 

Public Works Laydown Yard 
Consultant Design Contract 
  
 ATTACHMENTS:  
 - Resolution No. 1258-1222 
 - Williams Architecture Proposal 
 - PW Maint. Yard Conceptual Plan 
 - June 2022 Council Study Session    

Maint. Yard PowerPoint Presentation  
   
 
  

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 
 
City Manager 

 
 

  
 

 
     
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The City Public Works Yard has been at 1000 West Pine Street for over 75 years. The main shop and 

Angleside booster pump station adjacent to loop field were the primary site improvements in 1951. The current 
maintenance yard today includes fleet repair, water operations, street operations, parks, facilities maintenance, 
diesel & unleaded fueling station, employee parking, fleet parking, and materials storage. 

 
The existing public works maintenance yard is too small to meet the existing needs of the City. Currently 

much of the manhole and pipe materials are stored offsite at the main wastewater treatment plant. The storm 
drain and wastewater conveyance system workers are housed at the wastewater treatment plant, while most of 
the equipment used daily is located at the maintenance yard. 

 
City staff worked with consultants to identify a solution to the maintenance yard space issue by completing a 

planning stage study. The planning stage study included building space needs such as: office, locker, eating, 
restrooms, meeting, emergency operations center, emergency power generation, work areas, sign shop, 
heated shop, tool storage, parts storage, covered bays, vehicle fueling, materials stockpiles, staff parking, 
equipment parking, and public parking. Conclusions from the planning study are listed below. 

 
Planning Study Conclusions: 

• The new facility should have a minimum life span of 50-years. 
• The minimum desired site size is 5-acres. Larger size for future growth is desirable. 
• The anticipated buildings total 37,000 square feet for administrative and maintenance, 
• Combines all Public Works Departments at one-facility, including Engineering that frees up space 

at the Civic Center. 
• Provide space for public use such as a conference center and walking trails. 
• Save larger trees, including groves of smaller white oaks, when possible. 
• The new facility will be seismically capable to be immediately occupiable after a magnitude 8.0 

earthquake and serve as the City Emergency operations center for all man-made and natural 
disasters. 

• Site shall have multiple access points and be located centrally in the community. 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

The Well 1 site on Shelton Springs Road was selected as being the best suited to meet the identified 
needs for the future Public Works maintenance yard complex. The attached conceptual site plan was 
prepared by Williams Architecture and identifies three phases of site construction: 
 
Phase #1: Clearing, grading, gravel, fencing, stormwater, paved entry, utility stubs, and yard lighting. 
Complete interim improvements at existing maintenance yard. Planned for FY 2023-2024 
 
Phase #2: Paved parking, paved & gravel equipment storage, covered storage, administration building 
shell with main improvements, maintenance shop, fueling, and generator. Planned for FY 2027-2028 
 
Phase #3: Complete administration building shell, complete covered storage areas, add vactor dump 
station, add salt bins, relocate fueling to the north, add additional laydown areas, and add additional 
heated storage. Planned for FY 2030-2031 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  

Council could choose to not move forward with site design phase for a new public works maintenance yard. 
The existing maintenance yard will continue to operate with the current limitations without adequate space for 
future growth needs. 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
   The estimated cost for Williams Architecture and their subconsultants to complete the work is $145,410, refer 
to the attached proposal. $585,000 in funding for the project was approved in the FY 2021 budget and is split 
between the Water, Wastewater, Street, Storm, and EM&R funds.   

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

Staff recommends: “I move to place Resolution No. 1258-1222 on the action agenda of the February 7th 

council meeting”.     
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1258-1222 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH WILLIAMS 

ARCHITECTURE FOR THE DESIGN OF THE NEW PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE YARD 
PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $145,410.00 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Public Works Yard has been at 1000 West Pine Street for over 75 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the maintenance yard serves as a main backbone for the city, housing fleet repair, water operations, 
street operations, parks, facilities maintenance, diesel & unleaded fueling station, employee parking, fleet parking, 
and materials storage; and 
 
WHEREAS, the existing public works maintenance yard is too small to meet the existing and future 
needs of the City; and   
 
WHEREAS, City staff worked with consultants to identify a solution to the maintenance yard space issue 
by completing a planning stage study; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning stage study found that the well 1 site on Shelton Springs Road was the best 
suited to meet the identified existing and future needs for a future Public Works maintenance yard 
complex. 
 
WHEREAS, City staff has selected Williams Architecture to complete the site design and permitting 
phases for the maintenance yard improvement project, as Williams Architecture is on the Public Works 
Consultant Qualified Pool List and recently completed planning study for the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager is 
hereby authorized to sign the professional services contract with Williams Architecture in the amount of 
$145,410 for the design of the Public Works maintenance yard project and approve all change orders up to 
10% of the contract amount. 
  
INTRODUCED on the 17th day of January 2023 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting held on 
the 7th day of February 2023. 

 
 
 
                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Onisko  
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Shelton Public Works Department 
Attention: Mike Albaugh 
Subject: City of Shelton new Public Works facility planning 
 Phase 1 – Laydown Yard Design, Documentation, and Construction 
 
Overview 
The following Scope of Work and Proposal for Services is in response to your request. As you know, over the past 
year or so we have worked with you and SCJ Alliance to prepare a phased master site plan for new Public Works 
facilities on the City-owned property on Shelton Springs Road. That phased plan, attached here for reference, 
outlines the steps to accomplish the long-term goal, and Phase 1 of that master plan is to do the necessary 
sitework to prepare the site for future facilities, and for use as a Laydown Yard. 
 
You are also aware that we have not yet been contracted to go through the formal processes necessary to gain 
land use approval of the master plan. For that reason, assistance with completion of those steps is included in this 
Scope of Work, as a required first step before permitting any land clearing or site development. 
 
Upon receiving land use approvals, our team will then prepare documents for the eventual bidding and permitting 
of work needed to clear much of the site, do desired grading, and provide crushed rock or asphalt surfacing, with 
required drainage. Fencing, basic site lighting, and landscaping of portions of the site will also be required. 
 
The following Scope of Work is broken into services we anticipate for each of those three major tasks: Land Use 
Approval, Laydown Yard Documentation, and Laydown Yard Bidding, Construction, and Closeout. Within those 
headings, we have attempted to anticipate the work needed, which includes some allowances for work which will 
be billed hourly, only as it is required. 
 
Primary team members included in this proposal are SCJ Alliance, with Bob Connolly as the lead engineer for civil 
work, and Jeff Glander taking the lead for landscape design and documentation; Envirotech Engineering, providing 
the geotechnical consulting and soils report; and Williams Architecture as the team leader and coordination point, 
with Len Williams as the Principal Architect. Following is an outline of proposed services and related fees; 
additional background can be provided upon request. 
 
Land Use Approval 
Phased Master Plan review and comments 
Pre-submittal meeting with City of Shelton 
Conceptual design of primary buildings at full buildout, as required for Conditional Use approval 
SEPA submittal 
Preliminary Grading/Drainage plan 
Preliminary Stormwater Drainage Design Memorandum 
Preliminary conceptual Site and Building renderings 
Preliminary conceptual Landscape Plan for full buildout 
 
 
 
 

        November 4, 2022 



Land Use Approval (continued) 
Conditional Use submittal 
Representation at Conditional Use hearing 
Site Plan Review submittal 
Soils report 
 
Proposed fee for Land Use Approval services: $82,280  
 
 
Laydown Yard Documentation 
Prepare preliminary Phase 1 cost estimate 
Determine grading quantities 
Documents: 

Architectural Site Plan 
Clearing and Erosion Control Plan, details, and notes 
Final Site Grading and Drainage Plan 
Drainage, paving, sewer, water, landscape, and fencing detail sheet(s) 
Sewer and Water Plan and Profiles for Phase 1 work 
Final Landscape Plan (Phase 1 only) 
Irrigation System Plan (Phase 1 only) 
Required specification sections 

Permit application – preparation and submittal 
Permit review responses and required adjustments 
 
Proposed fee for Laydown Yard Documentation services: $46,990 
 
 
Laydown Yard Bidding, Construction, and Closeout Support 
Respond to bidder requests for information 
Prepare bid addendum if required 
Attend pre-construction meeting 
Construction meetings and site visits 
Respond to contractor requests for information 
Asist with change order preparation 
Punch list(s) 
Prepare record drawings from contractor redlines 
Prepare stormwater agreement 
 
Proposed fee for Laydown Yard Bidding, Construction, and Closeout Support: $16,140 
 
 
Reimbursable Expenses 
Allowances are included in the above proposed fixed fees for document reproduction, renderings for land use 
hearing if needed, meeting attendance by SCJ representatives, a preliminary traffic study (if required), comment 
responses by SCJ, surveying updates, and bidding, construction, and closeout support by SCJ representatives. 
 
Total Proposed Fee: $145,410 
We look forward to assisting Public Works with this important project. Please feel free to call with any questions. 
 

 
Williams Architecture        
Len Williams, AIA, Principal Architect 





Public Works
Maintenance Yard

Master Plan

June 14, 2022



2

HISTORY:
The City Public Works Yard has been at 1000 West 
Pine Street for over 75 years. The main shop and 
Angleside booster pump station adjacent to loop 
field were the primary site improvements in 1951.

1951 Aerial Photo

Site

Site

2020 Aerial Photo



History:  (Continued)

The current maintenance yard includes fleet repair, 
water operations, street operations, parks, facilities 
maintenance, diesel & unleaded fueling station, 
employee parking, fleet parking, and materials storage.

3

Fleet Repair & Heated Storage

Street Sign Shop

Fueling Station (2,000 gal. each)Fleet & Breakroom Building

Sander Equipment Storage Fleet Parking



History: (Continued)

4

The existing public works maintenance yard is too small 
and needs some maintenance updates to meet the 
existing needs of the City. 
Currently much of the manhole and pipe materials are 
stored offsite at the main wastewater treatment plant. 
The stormdrain and wastewater conveyance system 
workers are housed at the wastewater treatment plant, 
while most of the equipment used daily is located at the 
maintenance yard.
City staff worked with consultants to identify a solution to 
the maintenance yard space issue by completing a 
planning stage study.



Site Options:

5

The planning stage study included building space needs such as: office, locker, 
eating, restrooms, meeting, emergency operations center, emergency power 
generation, work areas, sign shop, heated shop, tool storage, parts storage, covered 
bays, vehicle fueling, materials stockpiles, staff parking, equipment parking, and 
public parking. Two options were identified in the study:
Option 1: Expand the existing maintenance yard
Option 2: Construct a new maintenance yard on existing City owned property.

Below are the conclusions from the study:

CONCLUSION 
• Facility has a minimum life span of 50-years.
• The minimum desired site size is 5-acres. Larger size for future growth is desirable.
• The anticipated buildings total 37,000 square feet for administrative and 

maintenance,
• Combines all Public Works Departments at one-facility, including Engineering, 

adding future expansion space at the Civic Center.
• Provide space for public use such as a conference center and walking trails.
• Save larger trees, including groves of smaller white oaks, when possible.
• New facility will be seismically capable to be immediately occupiable after a 

magnitude 8.0 earthquake and serve as the City Emergency operations center for 
all man-made and natural disasters.

• Site shall have multiple access points and be located centrally in the community.



Site Options: (Continued)

6

Option 1: Expand the existing 2.6-acre maintenance 
yard for immediate needs. Expand to a +/-5-acre yard 
for future needs. The conceptual sketch below was 
prepared showing expansion of the existing yard to 
meet immediate needs.

Existing Maintenance Yard Expansion Concept Plan



Site Options: (Continued)

7

Option 1 Advantages :
a. Cost, expansion of existing facility is the least cost option.
b. Location to city downtown, Police Department 

(fueling/maintenance) & Civic Center.
Disadvantages:
a. Requires 2.5 acres of property from Loop Field. Loop field functions 

would be moved to an alternative site. 
b. The $80,000 Loop Field improvements were constructed with 

State/Federal grants and may require repayment.
c. Existing buildings are not seismically reinforced. Maintenance yard 

and shop would most likely be not usable after a large 
earthquake. Future buildings would be seismic capable.

d. Hillside above site may slide during a large rain event or 
earthquake.

e. Many of the existing site improvements need repair or 
replacement.

f. High groundwater table, reaches surface in areas of site in winter.



Site Options: (Continued)

8

Option 2: Construct a new maintenance yard on City 
owned property. Two sites were studied, the property 
north of Wells 3 & 4 on Brockdale Road site south of 
Island Lake, and the Shelton Springs Road site adjacent 
to Well 1. The Brockdale Road site is large enough but 
has only one existing roadway for access and is located 
farther from the core of the city, and last year was 
being considered for a residential workforce housing 
development project. 

The Well 1 site on Shelton Spring Road was selected as 
the best candidate as multiple access points are 
available, water, sewer, power, & natural gas is readily 
available, and the city owned powerline easement 
area can be utilized for materials storage and parking.



Proposed Site:

9

Proposed
Maintenance
Yard Site

Powerline
Easement
Area

Veterans
Village

Well 1 Site

YMCA

Olympic
Middle
School

Well 1 Site Aerial Photograph Map



Proposed Site: (Continued)

10

The conceptual site plan shown on the next slide was 
prepared by Williams Architecture over a 6-month period 
with review/input from the majority of Public Works Staff.  
The plan includes three phases of site construction:

Phase #1: Clearing, grading, gravel, fencing, stormwater, 
paved entry,  utility stubs, and yard lighting. Complete 
interim improvements at existing maintenance yard.
Phase #2: Paved parking, paved & gravel equipment 
storage, covered storage, administration building shell with 
main improvements,  maintenance shop, fueling, and 
generator.
Phase #3: Complete administration building shell, complete 
covered storage areas, add vactor dump station, add salt 
bins, relocate fueling to the north, add additional laydown 
areas, and add additional heated storage.



Proposed Site: (Continued)

11Final Well 1 Site Conceptual Site Plan, Spring 2022



Existing Site Improvements:

12

Over the next year it is recommended that interim 
improvements are completed at the existing maintenance 
yard such as the addition of a locker room, updates to the 
kitchen, meeting, and eating areas, remodeling of the 
existing shop restroom, and 80’ of metal covered 
equipment storage that will relocate to the future/new 
maintenance yard.

Existing eating and locker room Existing shop restroom



Project Costs:
Phase Year Cost Description
1 2022 $  65,000 Ex. yard covered storage

2022-23 $  60,000 Ex. yard bathroom, break & locker rms
2022-23 $100,000 New yard land use approval phase
2022-23 $80,000 New yard design/permitting phase
2023-24 $650,000 New yard construction

2 2027 TBD Ph-2 design/permits
2028 TBD Ph-2 construction

3 2030-31 TBD Ph-3 design & construction

Refer to Page 11 for location of the various phases of work.

Funding:
The funding required for the completion of the phases for the 
proposed improvements are to be split between the Water, 
Wastewater, Street, Storm, EM&R, Facilities, and Park funds.  

15

Project Summary



For more information please contact:

17

Jay Harris, 
Public Works Director
City of Shelton
360-432-5125

Brent Armstrong
Wastewater Superintendent
City of Shelton
360-432-5180



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F1) 

Touch Date: 10/18/2022 
Brief Date:       11/15/2022 
Action Date:  01/17/2023 

Department: Parks, Recreation and Facilities 
   
Presented By: Mark Ziegler 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Park and Open Space Requirements 
for Residential Subdivisions 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
 Ordinance No. 1994-0922 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head   

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Current Shelton Municipal Code language is vague as to the specific standards to provide parks and open 
space for residential subdivisions.  Through the Washington State Environmental Policy Act the City is required 
to review and assess the impacts of development and require mitigation of such impacts.  These impacts are 
often seen in traffic, utilities, and environmental concerns, but parks and open space are also impacted as 
residential growth occurs.  As this growth occurs the City and Park District are not able to meet the adopted 
standards without supplemental funding and/or requiring the mitigation from developers.   
  
The proposed revisions better align with the adopted Parks, Recreation, Open Space, and Trails Plan. 
Codifying the 5 acres per 1,000 residential standard and the typical improvements that would be seen in 
neighborhood parks provide for certainty to the developers and City alike.  The newly created parks would 
typically be operated and managed through a Homeowners Association. 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
None 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
None 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
SEPA determination and Washington State Dept. of Commerce 60-day review. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move to adopt Ordinance No. 1994-0922 amending parks and recreation open space area requirements for 
residential subdivisions.”  



 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1994-0922 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON AMENDING SECTIONS 19.16.040 AND 
19.27.010 OF THE SHELTON MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO PARK AND OPEN SPACE AREA 

REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISIONS 

WHEREAS, RCW 58.17.110 requires property owners who subdivide their land to make adequate 
provision for parks and recreation; and  

WHEREAS, clearer standards are needed to establish what will satisfy the requirement to make 
adequate provision for parks and recreation; and  

WHEREAS, the City is required to plan under Chapter 36.70A RCW, the Growth Management Act; and 

WHEREAS, this ordinance is consistent with the City’s Parks, Recreation, Open Space and Trails Plan, 
which is an element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with RCW 36.70A.106 and WAC 365-196-630, a notice of intent to adopt the 
proposed new development regulations was sent to the State of Washington Department of Commerce 
and to other state agencies on November 9, 2022 to allow for a sixty-day review and comment period, 
which comment period ended prior to adoption of this ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, an Environmental Checklist for a non-project action was prepared under the State 
Environmental Policy Act (Chapter 43.21CRCW), pursuant to Chapter 197-11 WAC, and a Determination 
of Non-Significance (DNS) was issued on December 29, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Citizens Advisory Committee was briefed on the proposed code 
amendment on September 10, 2022 and approved a motion supporting adoption of the proposed 
amendments; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the proposed code amendment at the November 15, 2022 City 
Council meeting; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed code amendments were approved by the City Council on January 17, 2023; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the provisions of this ordinance are in the best interest of and 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, STATE OF WASHINGTON, DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Section 19.16.040C(18) of the Shelton Municipal Code is hereby amended and is to read as 
follows: 

18.    Provisions for Parks and Open Space.  The subdivider shall make adequate provision for playgrounds, 
parks, and recreation. This shall be demonstrated by including a minimum amount of park space 
equivalent to five acres per 1,000 residents to reside in the subdivision, based on the average family size 
as indicated in the most recent census. The preliminary plat shall show the location, size, and proposed 
improvements of all park facilities to be included in the plat. The first up to two acres of park space must 



 
 

be designated for active recreation uses such as playgrounds, sport courts, fields sufficient in size to 
allow for sports and active play, community gardens, and multi-use trails meeting WSDOT standards. If a 
subdivider is required, due to the number of residents in the subdivision, to designate more than two 
acres, the remainder of the designated area may, at the subdivider’s option, be designated for active 
recreation or for passive recreational uses like walking, hiking, picnicking, and birdwatching.  Parkland 
proposed for passive recreational uses shall include usable features such as unpaved trails, picnic tables, 
and/or landscaped areas with benches. 

All parks and open space areas proposed for active use shall be located in an accessible and usable 
portion of the site (not within waterways, steep slopes, wetlands, or other critical areas, except as 
allowed by SMC Chapter 21.64) and be of adequate size, slope, and dimensions to provide usable 
amenities. Parks shall be owned in common and managed by a homeowners’ association (or equivalent 
body), provided that upon mutual agreement of the subdivider and the City of Shelton, ownership and 
maintenance responsibility may be assumed by the City. 

 

Section 2. Section 19.27.010 of the Shelton Municipal Code is hereby amended and is to read as follows: 

19.27.010 Compliance with city parks and recreation standards. 
 
As a condition of receiving final plat approval, the park improvements identified on the plat map 
pursuant to SMC 19.16.040(C)(18) shall be fully constructed or bonded consistent with RCW 58.17.130.  
 

Section 3. 
 
The Legislature having given authority over the budget to the City Council, this shall take effect five days 
after its approval and publication as required by law. 
 

INTRODUCED the 15th day of November 2022. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County, Washington at a regular open public 
meeting held the 17th day of January 2023. 

      

Passed this ______ day of _________________ 2023. 

 

  _____________________ 
  Eric Onisko, Mayor 
  

  AUTHENTICATED:  

  _____________________ 
Donna Nault, City Clerk 

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Shelton/#!/Shelton21/Shelton2164.html#21.64


Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F2) 
Touch Date: 12/06/2022 
Brief Date:       01/03/2023 
Action Date:  01/17/2023 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Olympic Region Local Programs 
Project Administration Agreement 
(PAA)  
  
 ATTACHMENTS:  
- LRSP Award Letter  
- Olympic Region Local Programs 

PAA-Systemic Pedestrian Safety 
Improvements   

 -Resolution No. 1254-1222 
 -Grant submittal preliminary designs  
 -Local Programs LRSP awards 

statewide   
 
  

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 
 
City Manager 

 
 

  
 

 
     
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Shelton competed statewide and was awarded $1,295,00 in federal funding in September 2022 to construct 

crosswalk improvements at Olympic Highway North and I Street, Olympic Highway South and Bellevue Ave, 
West Railroad Ave, and 3rd Street and to evaluate the existing signal at West Railroad Ave and 7th Street.  The 
attached award letter has a detailed project summary, schedule and project costs that show the amount 
awarded.  The grant funds are for design, right-of-way acquisition and construction.  The funding requires no 
local match if obligation for all phases of the project occurs by April 30, 2026.   

Shelton is not a certified agency (awarded by WSDOT after you show the ability/need) to manage a state or 
federally funded project without “checking in” with the WSDOT Local Programs Engineer at specified 
milestones during the project.  Prior to preparing documents to use the funds, the City needs to sign the 
attached Olympic Region Local Programs Project Administration Agreement (PAA) for the project.  The 
agreements describe 14 items Shelton needs to perform throughout the project; these are the “strings” 
associated with accepting this funding.  
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  

Council could choose to not sign the agreements and relinquish the funding.    
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
   The project is included in the FY 2023 budget in the amount of $1,160,000 and the remaining grant funds will 
be budgeted prior to construction of the improvements    
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
  Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department.  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to approve Resolution No. 1254-1222 as presented”.     
 



September 13, 2022 

Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements 
2022 City Safety Selections 
Federal Funding 

Mr. Jay Harris, PE
Public Works Director 
City of Shelton 
525 West Cota Street 
Shelton, Washington 98584 

Dear Mr. Harris: 

WSDOT is pleased to advise you that the above-mentioned safety project was recently 
selected to receive funding through the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP). The 
federal funding is limited to the amount shown below: 

Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements     $1,295,000 
Scope:  See attached Project Summary – delivered as one contract.   
NOTE:  The project is eligible for 100% HSIP funding, for all phases authorized prior to 
April 30, 2026. If any phase is not obligated by this date, remaining funding will be 
rescinded, and the agency will need to re-compete for funding or construct the project with 
local funds. Scope and funding modifications require prior approval from WSDOT Local 
Programs.   

In order to meet state and federal requirements, the following are required: 
 Project expenditures incurred before receiving notice from Local Programs of federal

fund authorization are not eligible for reimbursement.
 Please refer to the Local Programs web page for detailed information, including:

(http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/localprograms/)
 Local Agency Guidelines (LAG) manual for the requirements regarding

programming, authorization, reimbursement, etc.;
 Projects utilizing federal funds must be included in your current

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) as a complete programmed
project. Once your TIP amendment is approved, WSDOT will amend the
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP);

 Funding and billing forms;
 Local Project Report is required to be completed by the end of June and

December each year. To access the database you will need an account name
and password. Your account name is Shelton and your password is Shelt396.
The password is case sensitive.

 If the project is not actively pursued, or becomes inactive (23 CFR 630), the project
is at risk of being cancelled, and funds reprogrammed.

 FHWA requires that all projects are ADA compliant upon completion or the federal
funds must be repaid.

http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/localprograms/


Jay Harris 
City of Shelton 
2022 City Safety Selections 
September 9, 2022 
 

 
As a reminder, Local Programs requires all agencies to submit monthly progress billings to 
ensure timely reimbursement of eligible federal expenditures. 
 
For assistance please contact John Ho, your Region Local Programs Engineer at 
564.669.1018. 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
      

Jay Drye, PE 
Director 

     Local Programs 
 
JD:st:ml 
Enclosure 
cc: John Ho, Olympic Region Local Programs Engineer, MS 47440 







Olympic Region Local Programs Project Administration Agreement 

Shelton  Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements 
City Project Title 

 
This Agreement is entered into between the Washington State Department of Transportation 
(STATE) and the above named city (CITY). 
 
The CITY is not currently certified as having staff with the knowledge and experience to manage a 
Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) federally funded project, therefore WSDOT requires 
the above-named project (Project) be administered under the supervision of the Washington State 
Department of Transportation Olympic Region Local Programs Office (Local Programs). 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
1. The CITY, operating under an extension of Local Programs Certification Acceptance (CA), 
agrees to administer this Project entirely in accordance with federal law, the Local Agency 
Guidelines (LAG), this Project Administration Agreement, and direction as provided by the Local 
Programs Engineer (LPE).  Failure to comply with federal law, the LAG, this Project Administration 
Agreement, or the direction of the LPE may result in loss of federal funds. 
 
2. The STATE and the CITY have designated CA Managers as shown below: 
 
STATE: City 
John Ho, PE  
WSDOT Olympic Region  
Local Programs 
HoJohn@wsdot.wa.gov 
360-357-2631 (office) 
564-669-1018 (cell)  

Ken Gill, PE  
City Engineer 
525 West Cota Street  
Shelton, WA 98374  
Ken.Gill@SheltonWA.gov  
360-432-5144 (office) 
360-490-0453 (cell)  

 
The CITY CA Manager is the full time CITY employee that is in responsible charge of the Project.  
All formal submittals outlined herein, either from the STATE or the CITY, will be sent through the 
designated CA Manager. 
 
3. The CITY shall obtain approval from the LPE of the consultant solicitation method, 
advertisement and selection process for using a consulting firm for PE, Right of Way and 
Construction Engineering services.  In addition, the CITY shall obtain concurrence of Consulting 
Engineering Agreements and Supplements from the LPE before execution (see LAG chapter 31).  
The scope of the negotiated agreement for PE must complete the PE phase for the entire Project. 
 
4. Contract Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) shall be prepared in accordance with 
the current State of Washington Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal 
Construction and adopted design standards (see LAG chapter 42 and 44).  The CITY shall submit the 
PS&E and contract to the LPE for review to ensure compliance with the LAG. 
 
5. Any deviation to design standards (see LAG chapter 42) must be stamped by a Professional 
Engineer licensed in the State of Washington.  The CITY shall submit the design deviation to the 
LPE for further processing and approval. 



City of Shelton 
Project Administration Agreement 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
6. The CITY shall be responsible for all required environmental documentation (SEPA and 
NEPA) and shall submit all required NEPA documentation to the LPE for further processing and 
approval (see LAG chapter 24).  The CITY shall be responsible for obtaining all required permits and 
approvals. 
 
7. No Right of Way (R/W) action shall proceed without concurrence from the WSDOT Local 
Agency Right of Way Coordinator.  The CITY shall follow current WSDOT approved R/W 
Procedures as described in the LAG (see LAG chapter 25).  The LPE and WSDOT Local Agency 
Right of Way Coordinator shall be advised of all pre-R/W meetings.  All acquisitions of R/W such as 
construction easements, donations, permits, etc. shall be certified by the CITY and the STATE. 
 
8. The CITY shall forward the proposed advertisement for bids to the LPE for approval.  Upon 
approval of the advertisement for bids and construction authorization from FHWA, the CITY may 
begin advertisement for bids (see LAG chapter 46).  The CITY shall keep the LPE advised on any 
pre-award issues affecting the quality and timing of the contract.  Any required addenda to the 
contract documents must be approved by the LPE before it is issued. 
 
9. The CITY is required to utilize a Certified Acceptance agency or qualified CITY or 
consultant staff for construction management services.  Experience and expertise administering and 
managing construction projects funded by FHWA in accordance with the Standard Specifications for 
Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction, the WSDOT Construction Manual, and the Local Agency 
Guidelines must be verifiable and acceptable. 
 
Your Project that utilizes FHWA funds will require significant effort to manage and provide all of 
the documentation required by FHWA.  Typically the following construction staffing is needed: 
 
• Project Manager (10 to 20 hrs / week throughout the construction phase)  
• Field Engineer (20 hrs / week;  2 weeks prior to project ad to the end) 
• Office Manager (10 to 20 hrs / week throughout the construction phase) 
• Project Lead Inspector (50 hrs / week;  2 weeks prior to project ad to the end) 
 
This staffing does not include materials testing technicians, materials lab services, or additional 
project inspectors for larger projects.  One person may fill multiple roles if qualified.  Adequate 
experienced staffing will help assure a successful federal aid project.  The CITY shall obtain 
approval of construction management staff, including Project Manager, Field Engineer, Office 
Manager and Lead Inspector, from the LPE before construction funds will be authorized. 
 
10. The CITY shall notify the LPE of the Bid Opening date and time.  The CITY shall transmit 
to the LPE, the Engineer’s Estimate, Bid Tabulations, UDBE Utilization Certificate and the UDBE 
Written Confirmation of the apparent low bidder. Upon approval by the LPE, the CITY may Award 
the Contract to the lowest responsive bidder (see LAG chapter 46). 
 
11. Upon the CITY execution of the contract for construction, the CITY shall administer and 
inspect the Project in accordance with the contract documents, WSDOT Standard Specifications for 
Road Bridge and Municipal Construction, the WSDOT Construction Manual, the Local Agency 
Guidelines and all applicable state and federal laws (see LAG chapter 52). 



City of Shelton 
Project Administration Agreement 
Page 3 of 3 

12. Changes to the contract will be documented by change order as defined in the current edition
of the WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction Section 1-04.4
and consistent with the WSDOT Construction Manual.  The CITY shall negotiate, and document all
change orders. Written authorization (email) by the LPE of proposed change order work, except for
emergency work, must be received by the CITY prior to proceeding with the work.  Any work
performed before receiving said authorization may be deemed ineligible for federal participation.

Prior to obtaining the contractor’s signature on any change order the CITY shall provide a copy of 
the change order to the LPE for review and concurrence, along with separate justification for the 
change and an independent estimate of price and working day impacts.  A copy of all executed 
Change Orders shall be sent to the LPE. 

13. The CITY shall schedule inspection of the Project by Local Programs and receive Local
Programs comments prior to providing the final “punch list” to the Contractor (see LAG chapter 53).

14. Bi-annual Local Project Reports must be submitted by the CITY before the end June and
December until the Project is complete and final bill is paid.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the party’s date 
signed last below. 

CITY OF SHELTON  

JEFF NITEN, CITY MANAGER  

By: _______________________________ 

Date: _______________________________ 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
JOHN HO, OLYMPIC REGION LOCAL 
PROGRAMS ENGINEER  

By: ________________________________ 

Date: _______________________________ December 16, 2022



RESOLUTION NO. 1254-1222 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, APPROVING 
THE OLYMPIC REGION LOCAL PROGRAMS PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT FOR 

SYSTEMIC PEDESTRIAN SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO SIGN THE OLYMPIC REGION LOCAL PROGRAMS PROJECT 

ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 
 
 

WHEREAS, in September 2021 Shelton was awarded $1,295,000 in federal funding the 2022 
City Safety Selections by WSDOT; and 
 
WHEREAS, the federal funding requires training, knowledge, and experience to manage the 
project to comply with the Local Agency Guidelines (LAG) manual; and the City of Shelton has 
no staff with this training.   
 
WHEREAS, WSDOT Local Programs allows the City of Shelton to operate under an extension 
of their authority through an Olympic Region Local Programs Project Administration 
Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, an Olympic Region Local Programs Project Administration Agreement has been 
negotiated between Ken Gill, City Engineer, and Andrea Archer-Parsons, Assistant WSDOT 
Olympic Region Local Programs Engineer for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the match amount for this funding is waived for all phases authorized prior to 
April 30, 2026; and 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the Olympic 
Region Local Programs Project Administration Agreement is approved, and the City Manager 
is authorized to sign this agreement. 
 
Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 17th day of January 2023. 
 

 
 
                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Onisko  
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  

 

 

 









   

     

                 

       

                 

         

     

       

       

     

             

           

     

     

       

           

       

             

       

               

     

     

             

     

       

           

             

                     

     

             

   

       

   

     

       

                 

         

     

     

     

     

           

         

     

2022 City Safety Program—Approved Funding Awards 

Agency Project Title Award Amount 

Aberdeen Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements $640,000 

Auburn Roundabout Implementation at R Street SE and 21st Street SE $1,667,000 

Auburn Citywide Uncontrolled Intersection Crosswalk Enhancements $600,000 

Battle Ground NW 20th Avenue and NW 9th Street Intersection Improvements $508,000 

Bellevue Coal Creek Parkway Corridor Safety Improvements $1,240,000 

Bothell Citywide Pedestrian Safety Improvements $340,000 

Camas Citywide Horizontal Curve Safety Improvements $360,000 

Centralia Systemic Horizontal Curve Safety Improvements $358,000 

DuPont Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements $539,000 

Everett Citywide Systemic Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data Collection Project $139,000 

Federal Way Systemic High Friction Surface Treatment Improvements $952,000 

Fife Citywide Intersection Illumination Improvements $598,000 

Kelso Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements $865,000 

Kennewick Systemic Safety Street Lighting Improvements $363,000 

Kent Canyon Drive and Weiland Street Access Control $111,000 

Kent 104th Avenue Pedestrian Safety Improvements $807,000 

Kent 4th Avenue Road Diet Phases 2 and 3 $936,000 

Kirkland Pedestrian and Bicyclist Safety Improvements $500,000 

La Center Systemic Horizontal Curve and Roadway Departure Safety Improvements $880,000 

Lakewood Custer Road Safety Improvements $1,420,000 

Longview Systemic Pedestrian Crossing Improvements $1,743,000 

Maple Valley Stop and Speed Limit Sign Safety Enhancements $317,000 

Marysville Citywide Pedestrian Safety Improvements $703,000 

Mercer Island Traffic Signal Safety Improvements $185,000 

Pasco Citywide Injury Minimization and Speed Management Implementation $300,000 

Pasco A Street and 6th Avenue Pedestrian Crossing Improvements $702,000 

Port Angeles E 1st St, Front St, and Marine Dr Pedestrian Safety Enhancements $1,280,000 

Port Orchard Street Lighting Improvements $220,000 

Port Townsend Discovery Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Improvements $233,000 

Pullman Citywide Intersection Improvements $1,062,000 

Pullman Citywide Pedestrian Crossing Improvements $574,000 

Richland Systemic Stop‐controlled Intersections $1,379,000 

Richland Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements $448,000 

Ridgefield Systemic Horizontal Curve Safety Improvements $360,000 

Ridgefield S 11th Street and S Timm Road Intersection Safety Improvements $380,000 

SeaTac Systemic Intersection and Pedestrian Safety Improvements $957,000 

Seattle Pedestrian Crossing Safety Improvements $1,330,000 

Shelton Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements $1,295,000 

Shoreline Meridian Avenue Bicycle Lanes $625,000 

Spokane Arterial Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons $1,929,000 
Spokane Valley Trent Avenue Access Control Safety Improvements $419,000 

Page 1 of 2 



   

     

             

   

         

               

                 

       

         

         

     

     

Agency Project Title Award Amount 
Spokane Valley Retroreflective Signal Backplates $122,000 
Sumner Systemic Horizontal Curve and Roadway Departure Safety Improvements $903,000 
Sunnyside Pedestrian Safety Improvements $780,000 
Tacoma S 25th St Traffic Safety Enhancements $1,780,000 
Walla Walla Rose Street Road Diet–Carey Court to Palouse Street $750,000 
Washougal 32nd Street from Addy Street to Stiles Road Corridor Improvements $896,000 
Wenatchee Fifth and Emerson Pedestrian Crossing $276,000 
Wenatchee City of Wenatchee 2023 Traffic Counts $50,000 
Yakima Systemic Pedestrian and Bicyclist Data Collection $260,000 
Yakima Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements $317,000 

Page 2 of 2 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F3) 

Touch Date:    12/06/2022  
Brief Date:       01/03/2023 
Action Date:  01/17/2023 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: City Engineer Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Brockdale Road Project Award 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1255-1222   
- RH2 recommendation for award with  
   Bid Tabulation  
- 2021 STBG funding  
- 2023 Budget Request for OHN  
 -Project Limits and Traffic Control Plan 
  
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head   J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Brockdale Road is listed in Shelton’s Six Year Transportation Improvement Program.  The improvements 
consist of new pavement surfacing and channelization on Brockdale Road from Wallace-Kneeland Blvd to 
Batstone Cut-off Road.  WSDOT approval for advertisement was approved in late September 2022 and 
Shelton advertised for bids in the Shelton-Mason County Journal and Seattle Daily Journal of Commerce in 
October 2022. The bid advertisement was also posted on the Builder’s Exchange of Washington website and 
the City Bidding Opportunities webpage. 
 
Six bids were received and opened that ranged from $267,322.40 (Miles Resources, LLC) to $546,285.00 
(Central Paving) on November 15th, 2022. The bid tabulation and recommendation for award letter prepared by 
RH2 (design engineer of record for the project) are attached.  
 
Award of the project must be approved by WSDOT Local Programs, after bids have been opened and prior to 
construction. Staff received approval to award the construction contract on December 6th, 2022 from John Ho, 
WSDOT Olympic Region Local Programs Engineer.   

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
Decline to award the contract to the responsible low bidder, not complete the project and return grant funds. 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
In 2021 staff applied and secured $278,000 federal funding from the Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) program allocation to Mason County.  The federal funding requires a 13.5% match.  Additionally, 
$80,000 of Transportation Benefit District (TBD) funding was budgeted in 2022.  The total funding available is 
the sum of these amounts ($358,000).  The project has spent about $59,208.50 in design in 2022.  In 2023 the 
project expects to spend $267,322,40 for construction, $38,318.32 for construction management and budget a 
10% construction contingency ($26,732.24).  Staff proposes to supplement this $33,581.46 budget short fall 
with 2023 TBD funds proposed for Olympic Highway North from C Street to Wallace Kneeland.  Staff submitted 
a Transportation Improvement Board grant application for Olympic Highway North from C Street to Wallace 
Kneeland in August 2022 that included $66K in TBD funding.  TIB staff informed Shelton in December 2022 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

that this project was not selected in 2023.  The Olympic Highway North from C Street to Wallace Kneeland 
would score better in the next round of TIB funding after existing TIB funding for Railroad Ave had been used.  
A supplemental budget amendment will be prepared for approximately $33,581.46 ($6,849.22+ $26,732.24) 
from the street fund at a future council meeting.   
 

 
 Project Cost Source of Funding  

Design  $59,208.50 $80,000 2022 TBD  
Construction  $267,322.40  $278,000 2021 STBG  
Construction 
Management  

$38,318.32 $6,849.22  2023 Street Supplement  

10% Contingency 
(of Construction)  

$26,732.24 $26,732.24  2023 Street Supplement 

Total $391,581.46  $391,581.46  
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to approve Resolution No. 1255-1222 as presented”. 



01/11/23 1 8:23 AM 

RESOLUTION NO. 1255-1222 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE A LOCAL AGENCY CONTRACT WITH MILES 

RESOURCES, LLC FOR COMPLETION OF THE BROCKDALE RD RESURFACING PROJECT 
 

 
WHEREAS, an Invitation to Bid was advertised in the Shelton-Mason County Journal on October 20 and 
27, 2022 and the Seattle Daily Journal of Commerce on October 18 and 25, 2022;  
 
WHEREAS, the City received six bids in response to the Invitation to Bid, which were opened on 
November 15, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, Miles Resources, LLC had the lowest responsible bid of $267,322.40. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager is 
authorized to sign a Local Agency Contract with Miles Resources, LLC for the completion of the 
Brockdale Rd Resurfacing Project, and the Public Works Director is authorized to execute change orders 
up to ten percent of the original Contract amount.   
 
INTRODUCED on the 3rd day of January 2023 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting held 
on this 17th day of January 2023. 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault  
 
 



 

      J:\DATA\SHEL\22-0059\50 SDB\20221120-LTR-RECOFAWARD.DOCX  

RH2 ENGINEERING 
EAST WENATCHEE 

300 Simon Street SE, Suite 5 
East Wenatchee, WA 98802 

1.800.720.8052 / rh2.com 

 

WASHINGTON 
LOCATIONS 

Bellingham 

Bothell (Corporate) 

East Wenatchee 

Issaquah 

Richland 

Tacoma 

 
OREGON 

LOCATIONS 

Medford 

Portland 

 

 

 

 

December 6, 2022 

 

 

 

Mr. Ken Gill, PE 

City of Shelton 

525 W. Cota Street 

Shelton, WA 98584 

Sent Via: Email 

Subject: Evaluation of Bids and Recommendation of Award 

  Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project 

  STPUS-5435(002)  

Dear Ken: 

This letter summarizes our review of the bids received for the subject project and 

presents our recommendation for award.  Presented below is our evaluation and 

review of the bids based on the attached summary of the bid tabulation for the 

project. 

The City received six proposals at the time of the bid opening at 10:00 AM on 

Tuesday, November 15, 2022. Of the bidders, Miles Resources, LLC of Puyallup, 

WA was the apparent low bidder at $267,322.40. This number includes applicable 

sales tax. The low bid is approximately 9% under the Engineer’s estimate. 

The project contract contained a Condition of Award requirement for 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal set to 11% as mandated by the 

Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) Local Programs who 

administers and oversees the federal fund allocations. Miles Resources, LLC has 

proposed a dollar amount of $29,530 for utilizing DBE subcontractors, which is 

11% of the contract price. This meets the WSDOT assigned DBE goal. 

We find the apparent low bidder to be qualified to perform the work. WSDOT 

concurs in the award to the apparent low, responsive bidder, Miles Resources, LLC.  

Contingent on City approval, we recommend award of the project to Miles 

Resources, LLC.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  J:\DATA\SHEL\22-0059\50 SDB\20221120-LTR-RECOFAWARD.DOCX 

MR. KEN GILL 
Dec 6, 2022 

Page 2 

  

 
 

 

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions you may have. 

Sincerely,  

RH2 ENGINEERING, INC.  

  

 

 

 

 

Erik Howe, P.E.         

Principal 

EH/ 

Enclosure: Bid Tab – one (1) copy 

 

 

 



City of Shelton
Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project FED AID PROJECT # STPUS-5435(002) Apparent Low
Bid Tabs FED AID CONTRACT # LA-10392

Item No. Description
Total

Quantity
Unit  Unit Price  Extended  Unit Price  Extended 

1
MOBILIZATION

1 L.S.
 $                                     27,000.00  $                                27,000.00  $                                   12,953.00  $                                  12,953.00 

2
PLANING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

6940 S.Y.
 $                                               4.00  $                                27,760.00  $                                             3.11  $                                  21,583.40 

3
PARTIALLY CRUSHED BALLAST

230 TON
 $                                             75.00  $                                17,250.00  $                                           40.00  $                                     9,200.00 

4
CRUSHED SURFACING TOP COURSE

310 TON
 $                                             85.00  $                                26,350.00  $                                           31.10  $                                     9,641.00 

5
HMA CL. 1/2" PG 58H-22

1000 TON
 $                                           115.00  $                              115,000.00  $                                         134.25  $                                134,250.00 

6
ASPHALT COST PRICE ADJUSTMENT

1 CALC
 $                                       2,000.00  $                                   2,000.00  $                                      2,000.00  $                                     2,000.00 

7
ROADWAY EXCAVATION INCL. HAUL

360 C.Y.
 $                                             50.00  $                                18,000.00  $                                           96.20  $                                  34,632.00 

8
EROSION/WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION

1000 DOL
 $                                               1.00  $                                   1,000.00  $                                             1.00  $                                     1,000.00 

9
PAINT LINE

8500 L.F.
 $                                               1.00  $                                   8,500.00  $                                             0.77  $                                     6,545.00 

10
RECESSED PAVEMENT MARKER

0.36 HUND
 $                                     10,000.00  $                                   3,600.00  $                                      7,700.00  $                                     2,772.00 

11
PROJECT TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL

1 L.S.
 $                                     40,000.00  $                                40,000.00  $                                   21,142.00  $                                  21,142.00 

12
ADJUST MANHOLE

1 EA.
 $                                       1,000.00  $                                   1,000.00  $                                      1,430.00  $                                     1,430.00 

13
ADJUST CLEANOUT

1 EA.
 $                                       1,000.00  $                                   1,000.00  $                                         550.00  $                                        550.00 

14
ROADWAY SURVEYING

1 L.S.
 $                                       5,300.00  $                                   5,300.00  $                                      8,624.00  $                                     8,624.00 

15 MINOR CHANGE 1000 DOL  $                                               1.00  $                                   1,000.00  $                                             1.00  $                                     1,000.00 

 Bid Schedule A
(City/FED) Total 294,760.00$                              

 Bid Schedule A
(City/FED) Total 267,322.40$                                

City Roadway - City/FHWA
Schedule A Total 294,760.00$                              Schedule A Total 267,322.40$                                

Total Estimate 294,760.00$                              Total Bid 267,322.40$                                

Engineer's Estimate Miles Resource



City of Shelton
Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project FED AID PROJECT # STPUS-5435(002)
Bid Tabs FED AID CONTRACT # LA-10392

Item No. Description
Total

Quantity
Unit

1
MOBILIZATION

1 L.S.

2
PLANING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

6940 S.Y.

3
PARTIALLY CRUSHED BALLAST

230 TON

4
CRUSHED SURFACING TOP COURSE

310 TON

5
HMA CL. 1/2" PG 58H-22

1000 TON

6
ASPHALT COST PRICE ADJUSTMENT

1 CALC

7
ROADWAY EXCAVATION INCL. HAUL

360 C.Y.

8
EROSION/WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION

1000 DOL

9
PAINT LINE

8500 L.F.

10
RECESSED PAVEMENT MARKER

0.36 HUND

11
PROJECT TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL

1 L.S.

12
ADJUST MANHOLE

1 EA.

13
ADJUST CLEANOUT

1 EA.

14
ROADWAY SURVEYING

1 L.S.

15 MINOR CHANGE 1000 DOL

City Roadway - City/FHWA

Other Bidders Other Bidders Other Bidders

Unit Price Extended Unit Price Extended Unit Price Extended

8,457.00$                        8,457.00$                   20,000.00$                      20,000.00$                 51,000.00$                      51,000.00$                 

5.25$                                36,435.00$                 4.00$                                27,760.00$                 5.20$                                36,088.00$                 

90.00$                              20,700.00$                 110.00$                            25,300.00$                 45.00$                              10,350.00$                 

20.00$                              6,200.00$                   95.00$                              29,450.00$                 45.00$                              13,950.00$                 

133.00$                            133,000.00$              145.00$                            145,000.00$              141.00$                            141,000.00$              

2,000.00$                        2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                        2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                        2,000.00$                   

190.00$                            68,400.00$                 58.00$                              20,880.00$                 160.00$                            57,600.00$                 

1.00$                                1,000.00$                   1.00$                                1,000.00$                   1.00$                                1,000.00$                   

0.83$                                7,055.00$                   0.80$                                6,800.00$                   0.85$                                7,225.00$                   

4,700.00$                        1,692.00$                   6,200.00$                        2,232.00$                   6,200.00$                        2,232.00$                   

64,500.00$                      64,500.00$                 66,000.00$                      66,000.00$                 45,000.00$                      45,000.00$                 

500.00$                            500.00$                      1,600.00$                        1,600.00$                   1,350.00$                        1,350.00$                   

500.00$                            500.00$                      1,600.00$                        1,600.00$                   1,150.00$                        1,150.00$                   

2,250.00$                        2,250.00$                   10,000.00$                      10,000.00$                 8,800.00$                        8,800.00$                   

1.00$                                1,000.00$                   1.00$                                1,000.00$                   1.00$                                1,000.00$                   

 Bid Schedule A
(City/FED) Total 353,689.00$              

 Bid Schedule A
(City/FED) Total 360,622.00$              

 Bid Schedule A
(City/FED) Total 379,745.00$              

 Schedule A Total 353,689.00$               Schedule A Total 360,622.00$               Schedule A Total 379,745.00$              

Total Bid 353,689.00$              Total Bid 360,622.00$              Total Bid 379,745.00$              

Puget Paving Tucci & SonsLakeside



City of Shelton
Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project FED AID PROJECT # STPUS-5435(002)
Bid Tabs FED AID CONTRACT # LA-10392

Item No. Description
Total

Quantity
Unit

1
MOBILIZATION

1 L.S.

2
PLANING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

6940 S.Y.

3
PARTIALLY CRUSHED BALLAST

230 TON

4
CRUSHED SURFACING TOP COURSE

310 TON

5
HMA CL. 1/2" PG 58H-22

1000 TON

6
ASPHALT COST PRICE ADJUSTMENT

1 CALC

7
ROADWAY EXCAVATION INCL. HAUL

360 C.Y.

8
EROSION/WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION

1000 DOL

9
PAINT LINE

8500 L.F.

10
RECESSED PAVEMENT MARKER

0.36 HUND

11
PROJECT TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL

1 L.S.

12
ADJUST MANHOLE

1 EA.

13
ADJUST CLEANOUT

1 EA.

14
ROADWAY SURVEYING

1 L.S.

15 MINOR CHANGE 1000 DOL

City Roadway - City/FHWA

Other Bidders Other Bidders

Unit Price Extended Unit Price Extended

38,000.00$                      38,000.00$                 78,000.00$                      78,000.00$                 

3.50$                                24,290.00$                 3.20$                                22,208.00$                 

110.00$                            25,300.00$                 182.50$                            41,975.00$                 

28.00$                              8,680.00$                   101.50$                            31,465.00$                 

145.00$                            145,000.00$              203.00$                            203,000.00$              

2,000.00$                        2,000.00$                   2,000.00$                        2,000.00$                   

105.00$                            37,800.00$                 171.00$                            61,560.00$                 

1.00$                                1,000.00$                   1.00$                                1,000.00$                   

0.80$                                6,800.00$                   0.85$                                7,225.00$                   

6,000.00$                        2,160.00$                   6,200.00$                        2,232.00$                   

83,500.00$                      83,500.00$                 88,625.00$                      88,625.00$                 

3,500.00$                        3,500.00$                   880.00$                            880.00$                      

3,000.00$                        3,000.00$                   550.00$                            550.00$                      

8,000.00$                        8,000.00$                   4,565.00$                        4,565.00$                   

1.00$                                1,000.00$                   1.00$                                1,000.00$                   

 Bid Schedule A
(City/FED) Total 390,030.00$              

 Bid Schedule A
(City/FED) Total 546,285.00$              

 Schedule A Total 390,030.00$               Schedule A Total 546,285.00$              

Total Bid 390,030.00$              Total Bid 546,285.00$              

Central PavingGranite



 

 

   
     

   
   

                                                                          

                                                            

                                                                               

                                                                      

                                                                

                                                           

                                                                

                                                        

                                                        

                                                        

                                                        

                                                           

                                                        

                                                   

                                                           

                                                           

                                                                             

                                                                             

                                                                             

                                                        

                                                           

                                                           

                                                                

                                                              

                                                                

                                                           

                                                                        

                                                              

                                                           

                                                                             

                                                                               

                                                                               

                                                                             

                                                                           

                                                                             

                                                           

                                                

                                                   

           

 

2021 Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program ‐ FINAL STBG Total 
Urbanized Urban TOTALRural Any Area 

Areas > 5,000 
Areas > 200,000 Areas < 5,000 Flexible 

and < 200,000 

BFCG 3,132,092 103,089 845,437 665,159 4,745,777 
PSRC 45,419,123 5,866,702 1,322,833 7,513,853 60,122,511 
RTC 5,337,984 3,221 386,520 917,042 6,644,767 
SRTC 5,757,897 156,905 908,519 1,124,177 7,947,498 
TMA total 59,647,096 6,129,917 3,463,309 10,220,231 79,460,553 

CWCOG 998,291 284,176 258,070 1,540,537 
LCV 299,648 230,704 79,630 609,982 
SCOG 1,182,883 441,810 312,245 1,936,938 
TRPC 2,920,257 316,559 574,340 3,811,156 
WCOG 2,104,287 397,041 479,483 2,980,811 
CDTC 1,082,719 827,871 361,741 2,272,331 
WWVMPO 697,455 569,711 210,664 1,477,830 
YVCOG 2,678,820 901,480 653,523 4,233,823 
MPO Total 11,964,360 3,969,352 2,929,696 18,863,408 

Adams 166,377 881,769 168,637 1,216,783 
Clallam 625,735 238,881 187,978 1,052,594 
Columbia ‐ 312,431 54,812 367,243 
Ferry ‐ 316,113 62,802 378,915 
Garfield ‐ 304,979 49,827 354,806 
Grant 696,565 1,206,606 371,954 2,275,125 
GHCOG 647,217 412,071 220,489 1,279,777 
Island 581,376 256,841 202,500 1,040,717 
Jefferson 124,705 212,458 96,385 433,548 
Kittitas 311,569 403,787 148,851 864,207 
Klickitat 70,592 527,513 119,285 717,390 
Lewis 440,742 444,720 230,368 1,115,830 
Lincoln ‐ 870,322 150,992 1,021,314 
Mason 277,691 355,329 180,714 813,734 
Okanogan 122,166 827,338 208,649 1,158,153 
Pacific ‐ 197,422 73,970 271,392 
Pend Oreille ‐ 245,660 64,101 309,761 
San Juan ‐ 120,583 51,595 172,178 
Skamania ‐ 295,091 67,240 362,331 
Stevens ‐ 775,257 207,657 982,914 
Wahkiakum ‐ 109,149 24,624 133,773 
Whitman 441,351 836,707 213,018 1,491,076 
Subtotal 4,506,086 10,151,027 3,156,448 17,813,561 

Grand Total 59,647,096 22,600,363 17,583,688 16,306,375 116,137,522 

WSDOT/Local Programs 1/25/2021 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Funding Priority: 4 

Title:   Olympic Highway North from “C” St. to Wallace Kneeland 
 

The asphalt in the drive lanes of Olympic Highway North from C Street to Wallace Kneeland Blvd are cracked 
and at the end of its life, and multiple (13) traffic and pedestrian accidents, including one fatality, have 
occurred in the past three years, exposing a need for additional safety improvements. Staff submitted a grant 
application for the Transportation Improvement Board’s (TIB) Urban Arterial Program to grind and overlay the 
travel lanes, fog seal the center turn lanes and parking stalls, upgrade existing ADA ramps to current 
standards, and replace striping in the project area.     

Staff was recently notified of their successful 2022 City Safety Program grant application to address needed 
safety improvements throughout town that were identified in the Local Road Safety Plan, one of them being 
the “I” Street and Olympic Highway North intersection, which is in this project area. The funding information 
(and budget request) for the City Safety Grant projects is further described in the 2023 Budget Request titled, 
2023 Local Road Safety Plan Projects, and not included in this budget request. 

Expenditures 

Category Description 2023 Requested 
Funding 

Continued 
Project Funding 

Capital Professional Services Design  $280,000  

Capital Professional Services Construction Management  $280,000 

Capital Construction (street and 
sidewalks) 

Construction for grind/overlay and 
sidewalk improvements ($2,280,000 
total estimated construction cost minus 
$400,000 for OHN & I Street 
improvements already accounted for in 
Street #2 priority 2023 Budget Request, 
2023 Local Road Safety Plan Projects) 

 $1,878,000 

Street Salaries/Wages Staff time  $2,000 

PW Engineering Salaries/Wages Staff time for design review, bidding, 
inspection, and grant reporting 

$2,000 $20,000 

Total Expenditures  $282,000 $2,180,000 

 

 
 2023 New Budget Request 

New Project / Program or Capital Purchase  
Department: PUBLIC WORKS 

Author: Ken Gill  



Page 2 of 2 

 

Revenue 

Anticipated/Proposed 
Funding Source 

Special 
Considerations 

2023 Anticipated/ 
Proposed Funding 

Continued 
Anticipated Funding 

Transportation Benefit 
District 

Anticipated City funds 
needed for full project 
scope, not including the 
cost for OHN/I Street 

$66,000 $189,000 

TIB UAP Grant (if 
successful) 

  $216,000 $1,991,000 

Total Revenue  $282,000 $2,180,000 

  
Comments/Additional Information 

TIB grant application submitted 8/18/2022, project award list anticipated to be announced early December 
2022.  

 



jharris
Text Box



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F4) 

Touch Date:    12/06/2022  
Brief Date:       01/03/2023 
Action Date:  01/17/2023 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
RH2 Brockdale Rd Resurfacing Project 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1     
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1256-1222    
- Supplemental Agreement No.1    
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

In March 2022, the Council approved a contract with RH2 Engineering in the amount of $59,208.50, for the 
design of the Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project. The Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project is federally funded 
in part by 2021 Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program.  With the federal funding comes “strings” 
that require documentation of having Construction Management support.   

Since RH2 Engineering completed the design of the project, they are considered the most qualified firm to 
provide Construction Management services for the project, which brings forth Supplemental Agreement No. 1.  
The Supplemental Agreement No. 1 will add $38,318.32 to the Contract amount.  

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
Decline Construction Management services and risk loss of grant funding. 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
In 2021 staff applied and secured $278,000 federal funding from the Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) program allocation to Mason County.  The federal funding requires a 13.5% match.  Additionally, 
$80,000 of Transportation Benefit District (TBD) funding was budgeted in 2022.  The total funding available is 
the sum of these amounts ($358,000).  The project has spent about $59,208.50 in design in 2022.  In 2023 the 
project expects to spend $267,322,40 for construction, $38,318.32 for construction management and budget a 
10% construction contingency ($26,732.24).  Staff proposes to supplement this $33,581.46 budget short fall 
with 2023 TBD funds proposed for Olympic Highway North from C Street to Wallace Kneeland.  Staff submitted 
a Transportation Improvement Board grant application for Olympic Highway North from C Street to Wallace 
Kneeland in August 2022 that included $66K in TBD funding.  TIB staff informed Shelton in December 2022 
that this project was not selected in 2023.  The Olympic Highway North from C Street to Wallace Kneeland 
would score better in the next round of TIB funding after existing TIB funding for Railroad Ave had been used.  
A supplemental budget amendment will be prepared for approximately $33,581.46 ($6,849.22+ $26,732.24) 
from the street fund at a future council meeting to fund the construction and construction management scope of  
this project. 
 
  



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

Contract End Date Amount Total Contract Amount 
Original 12/31/2024 $59,208.50 $59,208.50 

Amend. No. 1 12/31/2024 $38,318.32 $97,526.82 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to approve Resolution No. 1256-1222 as presented”. 



 1  

RESOLUTION NO. 1256-1222 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO APPROVE SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 TO THE LOCAL AGENCY A&E 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES HOURLY RATE CONSULTANT AGREEMENT WITH RH2 ENGINEERING, INC. 
TITLED, BROCKDALE RD RESURFACING PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, in March 2022, the City Council approved a $59,208.50 Contract with RH2 Engineering, 

Inc. for design efforts for Brockdale Rd Resurfacing Project; and 

WHEREAS, the design was completed, submitted to the WSDOT Local Programs for permission to 
advertise for bids; and  

WHEREAS, the project is now ready to commence construction and Construction Management 
efforts are needed in order to assist the City with Project Engineering and construction inspection 
services; and 

WHEREAS, RH2 Engineering, Inc. is the most qualified to perform Construction Management on this 
project since they are the design firm of record; and 

WHEREAS, RH2 Engineering, Inc. has proposed Supplemental Agreement No. 1, which will add 
$38,318.12 to the Contract amount, to provide Construction Management support to the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager is 
authorized to sign Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the Local Agency A&E Professional Services 
Negotiated Hourly Rate Consultant Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Inc. to allow for Construction 
Management Support on the Brockdale Rd Resurfacing Project.   
 
 
INTRODUCED on the 3rd day of January 2023 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting held 
on this 17th day of January 2023. 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault  
 
 



 

Supplemental Agreement 
Number 

Organization and Address 

Phone: 

Original Agreement Number 

Project Number Execution Date Completion Date 

Project Title New Maximum Amount Payable 

Description of Work 

The Local Agency of 
desires to supplement the agreement entered in to with 
and executed on  and identified as Agreement No. 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this supplement.  
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

I 
Section 1, SCOPE OF WORK, is hereby changed to read: 

II 
Section IV, TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION, is amended to change the number of calendar days 
for completion of the work to read: 

III 
Section V, PAYMENT, shall be amended as follows: 

as set forth in the attached Exhibit A, and by this reference made a part of this supplement. 
If you concur with this supplement and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the Appropriate 
spaces below and return to this office for final action. 

By: By: 

Consultant Signature Approving Authority Signature 

Date 
DOT Form 140-063
 Revised 09/2005

the City of Shelton
RH2 Engineering, Inc.

March 29, 2022 1

Refer to Exhibit B - Scope of Work

Refer to Exhibit D - Fee Estimate

1

LA10392

RH2 Engineering, Inc., 300 Simon St SE, Suite 5, East Wenatchee, 
WA 98802

STPUS-5435(002) December 31, 2024

Brockdale Rd Resurfacing Project $97,526.82

The City of Shelton has requested that RH2 Engineering, Inc., perform the engineering services for a 
pavement preservation project along Brockdale Road from Wallace Kneeland Blvd to Batstone Cutoff Road 
in Shelton, Washington. This Supplemental Agreement No. 1 is for the services during construction.

Richard L. Ballard - Director



Exhibit “A”  
Summary of Payments 

Basic 
Agreement 

Supplement #1 Total 

Direct Salary Cost 

Overhead  
(Including Payroll Additives) 
Direct Non-Salary Costs 

Fixed Fee 

Total 

DOT Form 140-063
 Revised 09/2005

$13,073.80

$25,506.99

$17,137.00

$3,490.71

$59,208.50

$9,652.84

$18,832.68

$7,255.50

$2,577.30

$38,318.32

$22,726.64

$44,339.67

$24,392.50

$6,068.01

$97,526.82



1
10/27/2022 2:58:52 PM J:\DATA\SHEL\22-0059\00 CONTRACT\AMND 1\AMND NO. 1_SOW_BROCKDALE SDC.DOCX

EXHIBIT B
Scope of Work

Supplemental Agreement No. 1
City of Shelton

Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project
Services During Construction

October 2022

Background
This Scope of Work describes tasks to be performed for providing engineering services during
construction for the pavement preservation project (herein after referred to as an overlay) in
Shelton, Washington in accordance with the plans prepared by RH2 Engineering, Inc., (RH2). RH2 will
work with the City of Shelton (City) to perform these services during construction. Because the City
is not a Certified Agency, any changes to the plans or this agreement during construction requires
Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) concurrence.

Task 5 – Services During Construction
Objective: Provide observation and construction contract administration services for the Brockdale
Road Resurfacing Project.

Approach:

Attend Pre-Construction Conference – Prepare for and provide an agenda and meeting minutes
for the pre-construction conference. Attend the pre-construction conference, to be held at the
City, with the RH2 project manager and one (1) RH2 inspector. The City will provide copies of
the plans and specifications in accordance with the construction documents.

Review Submittals – Review submittals for up to ten (10) materials (Qualified Product Lists,
Request(s) for Approval of Materials (RAMs), manufacturer certificate of compliance, mix
designs, and shop drawings) in accordance with the project plans and specifications. Maintain
the RAM on a weekly basis during construction. Prepare and maintain the Record of Material
(ROM) in Microsoft Excel format. Review certified payrolls, request for sublets, lower tier
subcontractor certification, and statements of intent to pay prevailing wages.

Coordinate Material Acceptance Testing – Provide a qualified tester (as a subconsultant to RH2)
for obtaining hot mixed asphalt gradation, oil content, and density testing per contract
specifications.

Provide inspector onsite – Provide one (1) engineer for an average of one (1) day per week for
thirty (30) working days. Time includes travel between the project site and the RH2 Tacoma
office.

a. Observe and document the construction contractor’s daily operations through daily reports
and photographs of the construction progress.



City of Shelton Supplemental Agreement No. 1
Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project Exhibit B
Services During Construction Scope of Work

2
10/27/2022 2:58:52 PM J:\DATA\SHEL\22-0059\00 CONTRACT\AMND 1\AMND NO. 1_SOW_BROCKDALE SDC.DOCX

b. Collect item quantity tickets and measurements of items to be used in preparing the pay
estimates.

c. Address technical issues and questions onsite.

d. Collect and maintain records for surfacing, asphalt, and traffic control items. Maintain the
project ledger for payment of construction contract items.

e. Prepare Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Condition of Award reviews and submit forms
to WSDOT; conduct wage rate interviews and submit forms to WSDOT.

Respond to Requests for Information (RFIs) and Questions – Address technical issues and
respond to construction contractor questions that cannot be addressed in the field by the
observer. Prepare weekly statements of working days.

Prepare pay estimate – Prepare one (1) progress pay estimate for submittal to the City for
processing.

Provide Project Closeout – Assemble project records for closeout and transfer to the City.
Subcontract with Akana Consulting to provide a quality assurance/quality control review of the
project documentation. Prepare completion letters as required.

Provide Project Management Services – Review invoices and budget throughout the
construction phase of the project. Communicate observed status of construction and budget
with the City on a monthly basis. Set up RH2’s construction files, and track, assemble, file, and
maintain construction documentation and attend WSDOT review audit as necessary.

Assumptions:
 It is assumed the project is thirty (30) working days with part-time observation as described

above. Additional effort, if needed, will be mutually determined by the City and RH2.

 RH2 is not responsible for site safety, for directing the contractor or others in their work, or
for determining means and methods.

Provided by City:
 Additional inspection services required.

RH2 Deliverables:

 Ten (10) hard copies of the pre-construction conference agenda and minutes.

 Hardcopy sets of construction plans and specifications (five (5) half-size plans with construction
contract documents and one (1) full-size plan set).

 Submittal reviews in electronic PDF.

 ROM in Microsoft Excel format.

 Construction observation reports and photos in electronic PDF.

 Responses to RFIs and technical questions in electronic PDF.



City of Shelton Supplemental Agreement No. 1
Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project Exhibit B
Services During Construction Scope of Work

3
10/27/2022 2:58:52 PM J:\DATA\SHEL\22-0059\00 CONTRACT\AMND 1\AMND NO. 1_SOW_BROCKDALE SDC.DOCX

 Weekly statements of working days in electronic PDF.

 One (1) pay estimate in electronic PDF and Microsoft Excel format.

 One (1) electronic PDF and one (1) hardcopy set of construction record drawings (half-size
plans).

 Letters of substantial completion, physical completion, and project completion in electronic PDF.

 Monthly invoices in electronic PDF.



EXHIBIT D
Fee Estimate

Supplement No. 1

City of Shelton

Brockdale Road Resurfacing Project - Services During Construction

Oct-22

Description
Project Manager Project Engineer Project 

Accounting 

Administrative 

Support

Total 

Hours

Total Labor Total Subconsultant Total Expense Total Cost

Task 5 Services During Construction 52 108 1 2 163 31,063$                 6,000$                            1,256$               38,318$                 
5.1 Attend pre-construction conference 8 4 - 12 2,973$                    -$                                     597$                  3,570$                    
5.2 Review submittals 8 12 - 20 4,080$                    -$                                     -$                        4,080$                    
5.3 Materials acceptance testing - 2 - 2 277$                       3,000$                            -$                        3,277$                    
5.4 Provide engineer onsite - 48 - 48 6,642$                    -$                                     188$                  6,829$                    
5.5 Respond to RFIs and questions 12 12 - 24 5,290$                    -$                                     -$                        5,290$                    
5.6 Prepare pay estimate 4 6 - 10 2,040$                    -$                                     -$                        2,040$                    
5.7 Provide project closeout 12 16 - 28 5,844$                    3,000$                            471$                  9,315$                    
5.8 Provide project management services 8 8 1 2 19 3,916$                    -$                                     -$                        3,916$                    

PROJECT TOTAL 52 108 1 2 163 31,062.82$      6,000.00$               1,255.50$    38,318.32$      

J:\data\SHEL\22-0059\00 Contract\Amnd 1\Amnd No. 1_FEE_Brockdale SDC.xlsm 10/27/2022 3:00 PM



City of Shelton

City of Shelton

Design and Construction

Classification / Job Title Hourly Overhead @ Profit @ Rate x Labor Hours = Cost

Rate 195.10% 26.70% Per Hour

Professional I 35.00$     68.29$          9.35$     112.64$   0.0 -$                 

Professional II 39.00$     76.09$          10.41$   125.50$   0.0 -$                 

Professional III 43.00$     83.89$          11.48$   138.37$   108.0 14,943.96$     

Professional IV 52.00$     101.45$        13.88$   167.33$   0.0 -$                 

Professional V 62.00$     120.96$        16.55$   199.51$   0.0 -$                 

Professional VI 76.00$     148.28$        20.29$   244.57$   0.0 -$                 

Professional VII 94.00$     183.39$        25.10$   302.49$   52.0 15,729.48$     

Professional VIII 107.00$   208.76$        28.57$   344.33$   0.0 -$                 

Professional IX 139.00$   271.19$        37.11$   447.30$   0.0 -$                 

Administrative I 24.00$     46.82$          6.41$     77.23$     0.0 -$                 

Administrative II 27.00$     52.68$          7.21$     86.89$     0.0 -$                 

Administrative III 31.00$     60.48$          8.28$     99.76$     2.0 199.52$           

Administrative IV 37.00$     72.19$          9.88$     119.07$   0.0 -$                 

Administrative V 59.00$     115.11$        15.75$   189.86$   1.0 189.86$           

31,062.82$     

Reimbursables Rate Qty

CAD System Per Hour $27.50 16 440.00$           

GIS System Per Hour $27.50 0 -$                 

CAD Plots Half Size $2.50 0 -$                 

CAD Plots Full Size $10.00 10 100.00$           

CAD Plots Large $25.00 0 -$                 

In-house copies (each) 8.5" X 11" B&W $0.09 600 54.00$             

In-house copies (each) 8.5" X 14" B&W $0.14 0 -$                 

In-house copies (each) 11" X 17" B&W $0.20 20 4.00$               

In-house copies (color) (each) 8.5" X 11" Color $0.90 0 -$                 

In-house copies (color) (each) 8.5" X 14" Color $1.20 0 -$                 

In-house copies (color) (each) 11 X 17" Color $2.00 110 220.00$           

Mileage 0.625$     700 437.50$           

1,255.50$        

Subconsultant Costs (Akana & CTL): 6,000.00$        

Subconsultant Markup: -$                 

Total Subconsultant: 6,000.00$        

Grand Total: 38,318.32$     

Prepared by:  

E. Howe

Exhibit D Continued

Consultant Fee Determination - Nogotiated Hourly Rate Consultant Agreement



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F5) 

Touch Date:   12/20/2022          
Brief Date:      01/03/2023 
Action Date:   01/17/2023 

 

Department: Police 
   
Presented By: Carole Beason 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
 Mason County Jail Contract  

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
     - Contract 
 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
CB 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
 

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

Shelton Police Department recently negotiated a contract with the Nisqually Correctional Facility primarily 
to house inmates who are not eligible for booking at Mason County Jail due to booking restrictions.  Our 
new contract with Nisqually prompted us to renegotiate our existing contract with Mason County Jail.  
Currently, the City of Shelton pays for 7 guaranteed beds at MCSO jail that tend to be underutilized due to 
staffing and booking limitations at the jail.  The new contract will be a “per diem” contract where we will 
only pay for beds we are occupying. 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
 Our new contract with Nisqually will allow us to hold more offenders responsible for their behavior and will 

negate the need for guaranteed beds at MCSO. 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 Currently the City of Shelton pays for 7 beds every day whether they are utilized or not.  In the new 

contract the city will only be billed for utilized beds. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

“I move to authorize City Manager Niten to sign the updated inter-local agreement with Mason County 
Sheriff’s Office for jail services”. 



Page 1 of 16 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR USE OF JAIL FACILITIES 

This interlocal agreement is made and entered into by and between Mason County (“County”), a 
political subdivision of the State of Washington, and the City of Shelton (“City”), a Washington 
municipal corporation. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Chapters 39.34 and 70.48 of the Revised Code of Washington authorize the 
County and the City to enter into a contract for jail services that specifies the responsibilities of 
each party; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to designate the County’s jail as a place of confinement for the 
incarceration of one or more inmates lawfully committed to the City’s custody; and 

WHEREAS, the County is amenable to accepting and keeping inmates received from the 
City in the County’s custody at its jail for a rate of compensation mutually agreed to herein; and 

WHEREAS, the County and City have considered the anticipated costs of incarceration 
services and potential revenues to fund such services and determined it is in each of their best 
interests to enter into this Agreement as authorized and provided for by RCW 39.34.080, RCW 
39.34.180, Chapter 70.48 RCW, and other Washington laws. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants, conditions, and 
promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. PURPOSE 

It is the purpose and intent of this Agreement that the County, through the Mason County 
Sheriff's Office Corrections Division (“Sheriff’s Office”), and the City, through its Police 
Department or City Manager, shall cooperate for the care and custody of adult male and female 
jail prisoners pursuant to the authority of Chapters 39.34 and 70.48 RCW. This Agreement 
provides for the use by the City of the County’s jail facilities and services at the County’s jail 
located at the 411 North 4th Street, Shelton, Washington 98584 (“Jail”). 

2. CONTROL OF JAIL 

The City acknowledges the County’s statutory responsibility for, ownership of, and operational 
control over the Jail. The County shall administer, manage, maintain, and operate its facilities 
consistent with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, policies, procedures, rules, and 
regulations. The City hereby consents and agrees that inmates committed to the Jail by the City 
are subject to all rules and regulations applicable to County inmates incarcerated therein, 
including but not limited to all terms and conditions of this Agreement. It is further understood 
by the parties that the County shall be solely responsible for operational decisions regarding the 
appropriate level of security, inmate management, and housing of all inmates. The Sheriff will 



Page 2 of 16 
 

reasonably consult with the City’s Police Chief regarding issues concerning City Inmates, as 
defined in Section 4.  

3. AVAILABILITY OF JAIL FACILITIES AND SERVICES PROVIDED 

(a) At the request of the City and subject to the capacity provisions below, the County will 
accept and keep inmates and provide inmate services for gross misdemeanor or 
misdemeanor cases initiated by the City and felony cases referred to the County for those 
offenses alleged to have been committed by adults within the City. Upon transfer of 
custody to the County as provided in Section 8, the County shall be responsible for 
confining, supervising, disciplining, and controlling the inmate and for administering the 
inmate’s sentence pursuant to the order of the committing court. 

(b) Capacity. The County will no longer accept City Inmates in the event that the Jail is 
declared at or near capacity by court order or in the event that the County, in its sole 
discretion, determines the Jail’s inmate population is at capacity or so near capacity that 
there is a risk that the reasonable operational capacity limits of the Jail might be reached 
or exceeded if the County does not begin to refuse or request removal of inmates 
provided that the County shall not refuse to accept City prisoners on mandatory arrests.  

i. Removal of Inmates from County custody. In the event the County requests removal 
of inmates based upon capacity, the County shall confer with the City to determine 
which City Inmate(s) shall be removed. If the Jail has sufficient capacity for any City 
Inmate(s) to remain in the Jail, the City shall have the discretion to determine which 
City Inmates will remain in the Jail. City inmates shall be removed no later than 72 
hours from the date of request. 

(c) Release or Transfer. The County will not release a City Inmate or transfer custody of a City 
Inmate to an agency other than back to the City, except as authorized by this Agreement.  

i. City Inmates may be released from the Jail for the following reasons: 

1. Request by City. The County shall release or transfer a City Inmate upon the 
County’s receipt of a written request by the City. When requesting a custody 
transfer, the City may request return of a City Inmate in order for the City to 
resume custody or may request transfer of a City Inmate to the custody of 
another jurisdiction. Any necessary transport shall be by the City or another 
jurisdiction or by the County with expenses to be paid as provided in Section 
7. 

2. Court Order. The County shall release or transfer a City Inmate upon the 
County’s receipt of an order directing the inmates release or transfer when 
the order is issued by a court having jurisdiction over a City Inmate. Any 
necessary transport will be according to the terms expressed in the court order 
or will be by the City or the County, with expenses to be paid as provided in 



Page 3 of 16 
 

Section 7. If the City’s municipal court judge orders that a City Inmate’s 
sentence is to be carried out in another facility or jurisdiction, the order shall 
be honored by the County to the extent possible, although the County may 
take into consideration whether another jurisdiction has charges outstanding 
against the inmate. 

3. Permission from City. The County may release or transfer a City Inmate if the 
County obtains the City’s written permission, with necessary transportation 
expenses to be paid by the County. 

4. Request by the County. At the County’s request, the City shall remove high 
needs inmates, as defined in section 4 (d), from the Mason County Jail no later 
than 72 hours from the date of request. In the event that the County releases 
a City Inmate without written authorization from a court of competent 
jurisdiction or from the City, the City will not be responsible for paying any 
further booking fees for the individual on any arrest warrant, detainer, 
probable cause affidavit, citation, other charging document, or judgment and 
sentence existing at the time of the unauthorized release. 

(d) Standards. The County shall provide inmate services to City Inmates in the same manner 
and to the same extent as the County furnishes for the confinement of its own gross 
misdemeanor or misdemeanor offenders. 

(e) Video In-Custody Hearings. The County shall continue to make available the Jail’s facility 
space, equipment, and security personnel in order to facilitate in-custody video hearings 
by the Shelton Municipal Court for City Inmates incarcerated at the Jail.  A City Inmate’s 
attorney or City staff shall be present at the Jail to facilitate the administrative court 
functions of each hearing, unless otherwise agreed to by the County. The City will 
continue to provide video equipment for such purposes. The scheduling of video court 
services shall be mutually agreed upon by the County and the City. 

4. INMATES DEFINED 

(a) “City Inmate” means those inmates charged in the City’s municipal court; those inmates 
confined and being held by reason of a warrant, order, or judgment issued by the City’s 
municipal court; those inmates arrested by a City law enforcement officer for a 
misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor offense while held prior to charging or to release 
without charges; and those inmates who are originally arrested for a felony offense once 
they are referred to the City’s prosecutor for filing in the City’s municipal court as 
described below in Section 4(c). “City Inmate” does not include those inmates arrested 
by a City law enforcement officer solely based on an outstanding warrant from another 
jurisdiction, those inmates arrested by a City law enforcement officer for a felony offense, 
or a County Inmate. 



Page 4 of 16 
 

(b) “County Inmate” means those inmates arrested by a County law enforcement officer 
while held prior to charging or to release without charges; those inmates charged in 
Mason County Superior Court or Mason County District Court; and those inmates 
confined by reason of a warrant, order, or judgment issued by Mason County Superior 
Court or Mason County District Court. 

(c) Determination of Case Status. The Mason County Prosecuting Attorney (“Prosecuting 
Attorney”) shall have the sole authority to determine which felony arrest cases submitted 
by the City shall be charged as felonies and which as gross misdemeanors or 
misdemeanors. If the Prosecuting Attorney determines that a case should not be charged 
in Mason County Superior Court or Mason County District Court, the case shall be referred 
to the City’s prosecutor for possible filing in municipal court with inmate services charged 
to the City. Following determination of case status by the Prosecuting Attorney, the City 
shall not be responsible, financially or otherwise, for any County Inmate. If the 
Prosecuting Attorney determines that a City case originally charged as a gross 
misdemeanor or misdemeanor in municipal court will be charged in Mason County 
Superior Court or Mason County District Court, then all inmate services will be charged to 
the County. 

(d) “High needs Inmate” is any inmate requiring isolation for their own protection, 
disciplinary, medical, or mental health.  

(e) When a material witnesses is held in the Jail, inmate days arising solely from a material 
witness warrant shall be allocated to the party issuing the material witness warrant. 

5. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 

(a) Compensation. The City shall pay the County for bed space and services for City inmates, 
including booking services, at the rates established in Appendix A to this Agreement, 
which is incorporated herein by this reference.  

(b) Calculating Time. The time period for billing purposes shall be measured starting from the 
time the City Inmate is transferred to the custody of the County and ending either when 
an inmate is released or when the inmate is no longer considered a City Inmate. Any 
portion of a day over four (4) hours will be billed as one (1) calendar day. 

(c) Allocation. In the event that an inmate is held on multiple charges or sentences, the 
following procedure will apply to determine charges assessed to the City: 

i. Costs for persons incarcerated on a City charge or sentence who is also being held 
in custody on the County’s or another jurisdiction’s charge or sentence shall be 
the shared responsibility of all charging or sentencing jurisdictions. 

ii. For these shared inmates, the City shall be billed the proportionate percentage 
share of the bed rate and the non-routine health care expenses for the shared 



Page 5 of 16 
 

incarceration period. If an inmate is incarcerated on both a County sentence and 
a City sentence, the additional bed rate and non-routine health care expenses will 
be split equally between the County and the City. 

iii. The County will provide the City with notice by telephone or email when a shared 
inmate’s status changes from a shared inmate to that of a City Inmate exclusively, 
for example when an inmate completes another jurisdiction’s sentence but 
continues to be held by the County solely on a City charge or sentence. This notice 
will be provided at least two (2) business days prior to the change in status when 
practicable and otherwise within a reasonable time. If municipal charges are 
dropped or resolved, such that an inmate’s status changes from a shared inmate 
to a County inmate exclusively, the City’s financial responsibility for that inmate 
shall end. The City will provide the County with notice by telephone or email when 
a shared inmate’s status changes to a County Inmate exclusively. 

iv. Nothing in this section prevents the City from releasing or furloughing its hold on 
an inmate. However, if the City voluntarily releases or furloughs an inmate and 
then reinitiates the hold on the same booking number during the same course of 
incarceration, the City shall pay the administrative booking fee outlined in 
Appendix A  

(d) Billing and Payment. The County shall transmit billings to the City quarterly, invoicing the 
City for all services, including daily bed rates, booking fees, and any non-routine health 
care expenses not billed directly to the City. Within forty-five (45) days after receipt of a 
timely billing invoice, the City shall pay the full amount billed or withhold a portion thereof 
and provide the County written notice specifying the total amount withheld and the 
ground(s) for withholding such amount, together with payment of the remainder of the 
amount billed (if any amount remains). If the County does not provide timely billings and 
instead provides more than one bill during the same month, the City shall have additional 
time to respond, namely an added forty-five (45) days for each late billing; for example, if 
the County transmits two (2) bills during the same month, the City shall have ninety (90) 
days from the latest dated bill to respond to both bills. Account balances overdue thirty 
(30) days or more will be subject to a service charge of 1% per month (12% per annum). 
Should collection become necessary, the City will pay all collection costs associated with 
late payments. Withholding of any amount billed shall constitute a dispute, which shall 
be resolved in accordance with Section 19. 

i. Charges for services rendered shall be made as they accrue each quarter and shall 
be substantiated with documentation. In conjunction with each quarterly invoice, 
the County agrees to provide the City with quarterly reports providing a tally of 
the total inmate days used for the quarter and documenting the names of all City 
Inmates held in the Jail that quarter, the names of all City Inmates held in other 
facilities on behalf of the County that quarter, the number of inmate days 



Page 6 of 16 
 

attributed to each City Inmate, and all active case numbers assigned to each City 
Inmate, referencing the reason for custody. 

6. HEALTH CARE AND ASSOCIATED COSTS 

(a) Health Care Services. Inmates shall receive medical, mental health, and dental treatment 
when medically necessary to safeguard their health while in custody as required by law. 
Upon transfer of custody of a City Inmate to the County, the County will provide or 
arrange for the City Inmate to receive necessary medical, mental health, and dental 
services in accordance with applicable law and Jail standards. 

(b) Inmates’ Ability to Pay. As required by RCW 70.48.130(4), the County, as part of the 
screening process upon booking or preparation of a City Inmate into the Jail, shall identify 
general information concerning the inmate’s ability to pay for health care, including 
insurance or other medical benefits or resources to which an inmate is eligible or entitled. 
The inmate shall be evaluated for Medicaid (or its equivalent) eligibility and, if deemed 
potentially eligible, enrolled in the program. This information shall be made available to 
the City and to any provider of health care services, among others. Nothing in this 
Agreement prohibits or otherwise restricts the City from conducting its own evaluation 
of a City Inmate’s ability to pay for health care, including but not limited to Medicaid 
eligibility, or from enrolling City Inmates in appropriate programs. 

(c) Cost of Routine Health Care. As between the City and the County, the County shall be 
responsible for the costs of providing City Inmates with routine health care. Such health 
care will include those health care services delivered within the facility at normal cost by 
County staff, contracted practitioners, or nursing staff. 

(d) Cost of Non-Routine Health Care. As between the City and the County, the City shall be 
responsible for the costs of providing City Inmates with emergency, exceptional, or non-
routine necessary health care. Non-routine necessary health care shall include 
practitioner-ordered health care or medical services delivered to City Inmates outside of 
the facility, specialized care provided by non-contract health care providers in or out of 
the facility, emergency treatment, including EMS and the local hospital emergency 
department, and related emergency or specialized medical transportation costs. 
However, the County shall be responsible for the payment of non-routine health care 
costs when City Inmates are assaulted while in the County’s custody, unless a City Inmate 
instigates the action where he or she is injured, or when those costs are incurred as a 
result of conditions in the Jail. 

i. Notice. Except in situations deemed an emergency by the County, the County shall 
notify the City prior to a City Inmate receiving medical, mental health, or dental 
services from an outside provider or institution, and upon request will work with 
the City to investigate the possibility of release from custody. In emergency 



Page 7 of 16 
 

situations, the County shall notify the City, as soon as reasonably possible, when 
the County becomes aware that a City Inmate needs emergency care.  

ii. Change in Custody. When health care or medical services are delivered to a City 
Inmate outside of the facility, the County shall be responsible for the first four (4) 
hours of off-site custody. Following notice from the County, the City shall assume 
custody of the inmate at the start of the 5th hour. 

iii. Billing. The City shall be billed directly by the medical care provider(s) or 
institution(s) for all non-routine health care costs. However, if a circumstance 
arises where direct billing is prohibited by law or otherwise not possible, then 
those non-routine health care costs will be billed in the same manner and subject 
to the same requirements and rights as quarterly invoices for inmate housing 
provided in Section 5(g). When the County receives invoices from third-party 
medical institutions or offsite providers for services provided to any City Inmates, 
the County shall send those invoices to the City as they are received by the County, 
including invoices received for non-routine health care expenses incurred for a 
shared inmate as described in Section 5(c). 

(e) Felony Offenders and Allocation. The County shall be responsible for non-routine 
healthcare costs for inmates arrested and incarcerated by a City law enforcement officer 
on a felony or district court offense. Health care costs for persons held under charges or 
sentences from multiple jurisdictions including the City shall be allocated as provided in 
Section 5(c). 

(f) Cost Reduction Efforts. The County agrees to utilize existing agreements with medical 
practitioners and organizations to mitigate medical costs, to make its best efforts to 
negotiate additional favorable agreements, and to seek out all eligible third-party 
reimbursement for medical costs (including health or auto insurance, DSHS/Medicaid, 
and/or the State of Washington), in the same manner and to the same extent as the 
County does for offenders held on its own charges. Specifically, regarding prescription 
medication, the County agrees to use the DOC Formulary, whenever possible, when it or 
its agents prescribes medication to City Inmates. 

7. TRANSPORTATION OF CITY INMATES 

(a) In-Person Court Appearances. The City will provide transportation for City Inmates to and 
from the Mason County Jail for all in-person Municipal Court appearances on City charges. 
Consistent with Section 7(b), if the County is housing a City Inmate in an off-site location, 
the County will transport the inmate to the Mason County Jail pending pick-up by the City. 
The City will notify the County no later than 2 p.m. the day before a City Inmate has a 
scheduled court appearance, unless the City Inmate was incarcerated after 2 p.m. and is 
required to appear in court by the close of business the next day. 



Page 8 of 16 
 

(b) Additional Transports. For additional transportation by the County required by court 
order or made at the City’s request, the City shall reimburse the County for staffing and 
fuel costs associated with the City Inmate’s transport. Such transports shall be approved 
by the City prior to the transport, and the County may agree to permit the City to provide 
partial staffing for the transport in order to reduce costs. In the event that the City 
requests release of a City Inmate to either the City or another jurisdiction, the inmate will 
be transported by the City or another jurisdiction or by the County at City expense, except 
that the County shall be responsible for first returning the inmate to the Jail if the inmate 
is being held in an alternative housing facility pursuant to Section 3(d). 

8. TRANSFER OF CUSTODY FROM THE CITY TO THE COUNTY 

(a) Arrest Warrant or Citation. City law enforcement officers placing an arrested person in 
the custody of the County shall, in every instance, furnish an arrest warrant, probable 
cause affidavit, citation, or other charging document to the County’s receiving officer on 
duty.  

(b) Commencement of Custody by County. A City Inmate shall be deemed transferred to the 
custody of the County when Corrections Deputies from the Sheriff’s Office take physical 
control of the inmate and accept lawful charging documents. 

(c) Right to Refuse an Inmate. The County shall have the right to refuse custody of a City 
Inmate under any one of the following circumstances: 

i. Lack of Appropriate Records. The County may refuse custody of an inmate until 
the City has delivered copies of any records pertaining to the inmate’s 
incarceration by the City. If a City Inmate has received or refused medical, mental 
health, or dental treatment from the City before confinement in the Jail, the City 
shall provide to the County written verification of any authorization of or refusal 
to authorize care or treatment for such inmate. If the County requests additional 
information regarding records, the parties shall mutually cooperate to obtain such 
information. In the absence of documentation and information satisfactory to the 
County, the receiving officer may refuse to accept custody of the City Inmate.  

ii. Pending Medical Needs. The County shall have the right to refuse to accept any 
City Inmate who, at the time of presentation at the Jail for initial confinement, 
appears in need of medical, psychiatric, or dental attention, until the City has 
provided necessary medical, mental health, or dental treatment to the inmate. 

iii. Booking restrictions. The County will maintain the right to refuse non-mandatory 
City arrests for inmates who do not meet booking restrictions as established by 
the Sheriff. The City shall have 72 hours to remove these inmates from the Mason 
County Jail.       



Page 9 of 16 
 

(d) Inmate Property. A City Inmate’s property shall be limited to the amount that can be 
stored in a locker. City law enforcement officers delivering a City Inmate to the County’s 
custody shall be responsible for ensuring property allowed to be transported with the 
inmate is properly packaged. 

9. INMATE RIGHTS AND PROGRAMS 

(a) Early Release Credit and Discipline. City Inmates confined under this Agreement shall earn 
early release credits under the policies and rules prescribed by the County and state law 
for all inmates at the Jail. The County shall maintain and manage City Inmate disciplinary 
issues and will administer sanctions as per facility rules. No discipline prohibited by 
federal or state law will be permitted. The disciplinary policies and rules of the Jail will 
apply equally to inmates confined pursuant to this Agreement and to those otherwise 
confined. If the County finds removal of earned early release credits is appropriate, the 
County will provide the City with hearing results and remove earned early release credits. 

(b) Programs. The County shall provide City Inmates with access to all educational, 
recreational, and social service programs offered at the Jail under the terms and 
conditions applicable to all other inmates in the Jail. 

10. UNUSUAL CIRCUMSTANCES  

In the event of one of the following circumstances, the City’s Police Chief or an on-duty Shelton 
Police Department Supervisor shall be promptly notified by telephone with a follow-up 
notification in writing. 

(a) Escape. In the event of a City Inmate’s escape from the County’s custody, the County will 
have the primary authority to direct the investigation and to pursue the inmate within its 
jurisdiction. Costs related to the investigation and pursuit within its jurisdiction will be the 
responsibility of the County. The County will not be required to pursue and return an 
escaped City Inmate from outside the County, except if the County relocates an inmate 
to another jurisdiction’s facility outside of the County, then the County must ensure the 
other jurisdiction investigates and pursues the escaped inmate.  

(b) Death. In the event of a City Inmate’s death in the Jail, the Sheriff’s Office and the Mason 
County Coroner will investigate the circumstances. In the event of a City Inmate’s death 
in another jurisdiction’s facility following relocation by the County, the County must 
ensure the other jurisdiction investigates the circumstances. The City may, if it wishes, 
join in the investigation and receive copies of all records and documents in connection 
with the investigation. The County shall, subject to the authority of the Mason County 
Coroner, follow the written instructions of the City regarding the disposition of the body. 
Such written instructions shall be provided within three (3) working days of the City’s 
receipt of the notice of death. The City shall be responsible for expenses related to 
necessary preparation of the body and transport charges. With written consent from the 



Page 10 of 16 
 

City, the County may arrange burial and matters related or incidental thereto, and the 
City shall pay such expenses. This paragraph deals with relations between the parties of 
this Agreement and is not intended to relieve any relative or other person from 
responsibility for the disposition of the deceased or associated expenses. 

(c) Catastrophe. In the event of any catastrophic condition presenting, in the sole discretion 
of the County, an imminent danger to the safety of the inmate(s), the County shall 
exercise all reasonable care for the safekeeping and custody of such inmates(s) and shall 
notify the City of the whereabouts of City Inmates in the event relocation was required.  

11. CITY ACCESS TO FACILITY AND INMATES 

(a) Access to Facility. City personnel shall have the right to inspect, at mutually agreeable 
times, the Jail in order to confirm the Jail maintains standards acceptable to the City and 
City Inmates are treated appropriately. 

(b) Access to Inmates. City personnel, including law enforcement officers, prosecutors, and 
criminal defense attorneys shall have the right to interview inmates at reasonable times 
within the Jail, subject only to necessary security rules. City personnel and criminal 
defense attorneys shall be afforded use of Jail interview rooms in equal priority with any 
other department, including the County. 

12. RECORD KEEPING  

(a) Type and Form of Records. The County agrees to maintain a system of record keeping 
relative to the booking and confinement of each City Inmate consistent with the record 
keeping by the County for all other inmates and in accordance with all statutory 
requirements. The County shall keep records of all medical, mental health, or dental 
services it or its agents provides to an inmate. Upon resumption of custody by the City, 
and in accordance with applicable law, the City shall receive a copy of a City Inmate’s 
medical, mental health, or dental records held by the County or the contract medical 
provider for the County. 

(b) City Access to Records. The County shall make copies of records available to the City 
within five (5) days of the City’s request or as otherwise agreed. In the event that a release 
of records is expressly prohibited by applicable law concerning the confidentiality of 
medical records (including the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, 
“HIPAA”), the County agrees that it will enter into a business associate agreement under 
the HIPAA as necessary to implement the intent of this Agreement. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION  

(a) Indemnification of City. The County shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, 
agents, and employees from and against all claims, actions, suits, liability, losses, costs, 



Page 11 of 16 
 

expenses, and damages of any nature whatsoever, including but not limited to costs and 
reasonable attorney’s fees, by reason of or arising out of any intentional or negligent act 
or omission of the County, its officers, agents, or employees. 

(b) Indemnification of County. The City shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, its 
officers, agents, and employees from and against all claims, actions, suits, liability, losses, 
costs, expenses, and damages of any nature whatsoever, including but not limited to costs 
and reasonable attorney’s fees, by reason of or arising out of any intentional or negligent 
act or omission of the City, its officers, agents, or employees. 

(c) Joint Liability. To the extent that any claims, damages, losses, and expenses are caused by 
the concurrent negligence or intentional acts of either of the parties, its officers, agents, 
or employees, the other party’s indemnification obligation hereunder shall be limited to 
that party’s proportionate share of liability as determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction or as agreed to by the parties to this Agreement. 

14. LEGAL STATUS 

(a) No Separate Legal Entity. This Agreement is executed in accordance with the authority of 
Chapter 39.34 RCW. It is not the intention of the parties to create a new or separate legal 
entity by this Agreement. This Agreement does not establish or create a joint venture or 
partnership between the parties, and no party shall be responsible for the liabilities and 
debts of the other party. 

(b) Independent Contractor. In providing services to the City under this Agreement, the 
County is an independent contractor and County officers, agents, and employees are not 
employees of the City for any purpose, including responsibility for any federal or state 
tax, industrial insurance, or Social Security liability. No provision of services under this 
Agreement shall give rise to any claim of career service or civil service right that may 
accrue to a City employee under any applicable law, rule, or regulation. 

15. INSURANCE  

(a) Insurance Requirement. Each party shall obtain and maintain liability coverage in 
minimum liability limits of Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000) per occurrence and Ten 
Million Dollars ($10,000,000) in the aggregate for its conduct creating liability exposures 
related to confinement of inmates, including general liability, errors and omissions, auto 
liability, and police professional liability. The insurance policy or policies shall provide 
coverage for those events that occur during the term of the policy, despite when the claim 
is made. 

(b) Certificate of Insurance/Proof of Coverage. Each party to this Agreement agrees to 
provide the other with evidence of insurance coverage in the form of a certificate or its 



Page 12 of 16 
 

equivalent from a solvent insurance provider confirming coverage from a solvent 
insurance pool that is sufficient to address the insurance obligations set forth above. 

 

16. EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION  

(a) Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective when both parties have duly executed 
this Agreement. Prior to its entry into force, this Agreement must be filed with the Mason 
County Auditor or, alternatively, listed by subject on the County’s or the City’s website or 
other electronically retrievable public source. Once this Agreement becomes effective, it 
shall replace and supersede any and all previous agreements between the parties 
regarding use of the Jail. 

(b) Duration. This Agreement shall continue through December 31, 2026, unless terminated 
earlier in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. At the end of the term, if 
neither party gives notice of termination, this Agreement shall automatically renew in one 
(1) year increments from January 1 through December 31. Nothing in this Agreement shall 
be construed to make it necessary for the City to house inmates with the County. 

17. TERMINATION 

(a) Notice. Termination of this Agreement by either party may be accomplished on ninety 
(90) days’ written notice to the other party and to the Washington State Office of Financial 
Management as required by RCW 70.48.090 stating the grounds for said termination and 
specifying plans for accommodating the affected prisoners. 

(b) Termination by County. In the event of a notice of termination from the County, it shall 
be the County’s obligation to transport the City Inmates at its own expense, on the 
effective date of such termination. Until such removal, the parties shall retain all rights 
hereunder, notwithstanding such termination, until all City Inmates are removed or 
released from the County’s custody. 

(c) Termination by City. In the event of a notice of termination from the City, it shall be the 
City’s obligation to transport the City Inmates at its own expense, on or before the 
effective date of such termination. Until such removal, the City shall pay the daily rate 
compensation and costs set forth herein related to inmate housing and services, plus an 
additional five dollars ($5.00) per inmate for every 24-hour period or part thereof that a 
City Inmate remains in the Jail; and the parties shall retain all rights hereunder, 
notwithstanding such termination, until all City Inmates are removed from the Jail. 

 

18. SEVERABILITY, SURVIVAL, AND NON-WAIVER 



Page 13 of 16 
 

(a) Severability. In the event any term or condition of this Agreement or application thereof 
to any person or circumstances is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect other terms, conditions, or applications of this Agreement which 
can be given effect without the invalid term, condition or application. To this extent and 
purpose the terms and conditions of this Agreement are declared severable. 

(b) Survival. The provisions of Sections 13, 18, 19, and 20 shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 

(c) Non-Waiver. No waiver of any right under this Agreement shall be effective unless made 
in writing by an authorized representative of the party to be bound thereby. Failure to 
insist upon full performance on any occasion shall not constitute consent to or waiver of 
any continuation of nonperformance or any later nonperformance; nor does payment of 
a billing or continued performance after notice of a deficiency in performance constitute 
acquiescence thereto. 

19. GOVERNING LAW, DISPUTE RESOLUTION, AND VENUE 

(a) Governing Law. The parties hereto agree that, except where expressly provided 
otherwise, the laws and administrative rules and regulations of the State of Washington 
shall govern in matters relating to this Agreement and an inmate’s confinement under 
this Agreement. 

(b) Dispute Resolution. Either party may notify the other in writing of a dispute involving the 
interpretation or execution of the Agreement. Within thirty (30) days of this notice, the 
parties shall meet to resolve the dispute. If the dispute is not resolved, then at the request 
of either party, it shall be referred to non-binding mediation. The mediator will be 
selected in the following manner: The City shall propose a mediator and the County shall 
propose a mediator; in the event the mediators are not the same person, the two 
proposed mediators shall select a third mediator who shall mediate the dispute. 
Alternatively, the parties may agree to select a mediator through a mediation service 
mutually acceptable to both parties. The parties shall share equally in the costs charged 
by the mediator(s) or mediation service. If mediation is not successful in resolving the 
dispute, either party may seek court action. 

(c) If mediation is not successful, either party may pursue resolution of the dispute through 
litigation or arbitration. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses of litigation or 
arbitration.  

(d) Venue. The parties agree that any action relating to this agreement shall be instituted in 
accordance with RCW 36.01.050 and Chapter 4.12 RCW. 

20. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES  



Page 14 of 16 
 

This Agreement is not intended to benefit any person, entity, or municipality not a party to this 
Agreement, and no other person, entity, or municipality shall be entitled to be treated as a 
beneficiary of this Agreement. This Agreement is not intended to nor does it create any third-
party beneficiary or other rights in any third person or party.  

21. NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

The County and the City agree not to discriminate in the performance of this Agreement because 
of race; color; national origin; sex; sexual orientation; age; religion; creed; marital status; disabled 
or Vietnam-era veteran status; the presence of any physical, mental, sensory handicap; or any 
other status protected by law. 

22. MAILING AND CONTACT ADDRESSES 

All written notices, reports, and correspondence required or allowed by this Agreement shall be 
sent to the following: 

County:   Mason County Jail 
    Attn: Chief Deputy of Corrections 
    P.O. Box 1037 
    411 North 4th Street 
    Shelton, Washington 98584 
    Facsimile: (360) 427-9197 
    Telephone Number: (360) 427-9670 Ext. 369 

City:    City of Shelton 
    Attn: Court Administrator/Jail Contract Administrator 
    525 West Cota Street 
    Shelton, Washington 98584 
    Telephone Number: (360) 426-9772 Ext. 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 15 of 16 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MASON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
DATE: ________________________  
  
 
_____________________________ 
Kevin Shutty, Chairman 
 
_____________________________ 
Sharon Trask, Commissioner  
 
_____________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Commissioner 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_____________________________ 
Melissa Drewry, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Content: 
 
_____________________________ 
Ryan Spurling, Sheriff 
Mason County Sheriff’s Office 

 
_____________________________ 
Tim Whitehead, Chief Deputy Prosecuting 
Attorney 
CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON  
 
 
DATE: ________________________  
 
_____________________________ 
Jeff Niten, City Manager 
 
 
Attest: 
 
_____________________________ 
Donna Nault, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Content: 
 
_____________________________ 
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 

  



Page 16 of 16 
 

Appendix A 

Costs and Fees 

1. Per Diem  

In return for the County’s housing of a City inmate, the City shall pay the county $ 130.00per 
day.  

2. Booking Fees 

The City agrees to pay the County an additional $_75.00_ for each booking conducted by the 
County where a City Inmate’s stay does not exceed four (4) hours or where the City voluntarily 
releases or furloughs an inmate and then reinitiates the hold on the same booking number 
during the same course of incarceration as described in Section 5(c)(iv), unless the City Inmate 
was previously released by the County without court authorization and is being booked on 
any arrest warrant, detainer, probable cause affidavit, citation, other charging document, or 
judgment and sentence existing at the time of the unauthorized release. If an offender is 
being booked on charges from multiple local jurisdictions, the booking fee will be split evenly 
between those jurisdictions to the extent possible. The booking fee is intended to 
compensate the County for the costs of registering, fingerprinting, photographing, and initial 
screening and examining of persons presented for confinement. 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F6) 

Touch Date:   02/15/2022            
Brief Date:      01/03/2023     
Action Date:   01/17/2023 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris, Public Works Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:   PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 

Wastewater Fund Property 
Acquisitions 

   
ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1259-1222 
- Byron’s Auto Purchase and Sale 

Agreement 
- Debban/Moore Purchase and Sale 

Agreement 
 
 

 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
J.O.H. 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

In 2019 Gray & Osborne (G&O) was hired by the City to update the 2013 City Sewer Comprehensive 
Plan. G&O has completed a draft of the Sewer Comprehensive Plan and Appendix H includes the a 
predesign report for the North Diversion Sewer Lift Station that will redirect the majority of wastewater flow 
in the northwest sections of the City and pump to the membrane treatment plant near Sanderson Field. 

The predesign report included the evaluation of multiple sites that are large enough and are properly 
situated to capture most of the sewer flows in the basin. The Debban/Moore property, located at Olympic 
Highway North and A Street, was selected by the consultant and City staff as the best suited site for the 
new sewer lift station, as shown on Figure 1 below. A conceptual plan of the future North Diversion Lift 
Station on the proposed site is shown in Figure 2 below. 

The purchase of the property shows City commitment to the proposed comprehensive plan capital 
improvement projects and can be helpful for the City to secure future grant funds to construct the $9.2 
million dollar lift station and force main project.  

Completion of the North Diversion Sewer Lift Station project and upsizing of the treatment and storage 
capacity at the membrane plant are primary goals in the partnership between the City and the Squaxin 
Island Tribe. Completion of the projects will allow much more reclaimed water to be reused, or infiltrate into 
the Goldsborough Creek aquifer, and reduce the amount of wastewater discharging from the main treatment 
plant into Oakland Bay.  

The City hired GPA Valuation for the appraisal of the lots in the fall of 2021 and the market value for the 
properties was estimated to be $405,000. Several lots purchased north of the future lift station site will be 
used as staging areas during construction and most likely would be declared surplus once the project is 
completed and might reduce the overall purchase price for the property. 

A cell tower site is in a portion of Parcels #7 and #8 are included as part of the property sale. A 99-year 
tower and access easement area lease for approximately 3,500 s.f. of the subject properties was executed 
on 6-30-2020 between the current property owners and Landmark Infrastructure Holding Company, LLC. 
The City will be the successor of the easement lease agreement, as shown in Figure 3 below. The lease 
payments were prepaid to the current property owners and the City will not receive any revenue from the 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

agreement. 
The City Attorney has reviewed the attached purchase and sale agreements, and both have been 

executed by the property owners. The total purchase price for all parcels is $405,000, with no earnest 
money down, closing contingent on a “clean” Phase 1 Environmental report, clear title, and City Council 
approval of the transaction. 

City staff met with Council last February in an Executive Session to discuss the proposed property 
purchase and after negotiations with the seller the City is prepared to move forward with the real property 
transaction. 

 
  Figure 1: Proposed Property Purchase, Lots 1-9 Block 34 Mountainview Addition 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 2: North Diversion Sewer Lift Station Conceptual Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 3: Cell Tower and Access Easement Lease Agreement Sketch. 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
Council could choose to not approve the property purchase at this time and an alternate site may be selected 
from the G&O predesign report and purchased in the future, if available. 
Note that the lift station site needs to be situated in the correct location topographically to intercept the majority 
of gravity sewer flows from the basin, which limits the number of potential properties for the City to purchase. 

 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION: 
The July 5, 2022, supplemental budget approved by Council by Ordinance No. 1989-0522 allocated $410,000 
of wastewater funds for the property purchase. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to approve Resolution No. 1259-1222 as presented”. 
 



   

RESOLUTION NO. 1259-1222 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION OF LOTS 

1 THROUGH 9 BLOCK 34 OF THE MOUNTAIN VIEW ADDITION 
 

WHEREAS, the draft of the Sewer Comprehensive Plan includes a project named the North Diversion 
Sewer Lift Station that will redirect the majority of wastewater flow in the northwest sections of the City and 
pump the wastewater to the membrane treatment plant near Sanderson Field; and 

WHEREAS, the draft Sewer Comprehensive plan includes an evaluation of multiple sites that are 
properly situated to capture most of the sewer flows in the basin; and  

WHEREAS, the properties located at Olympic Highway North between East A Street and East B Street, 
platted as Lots 1 through 9 Block 34 of the Mountain View Addition, was selected by the consultant and City 
staff as the best suited site for the new sewer lift station; and 

 WHEREAS, purchasing the properties shows City commitment to the proposed comprehensive plan 
capital improvement projects and can be helpful for the City to secure future grant funds to construct the $9.2 
million dollar lift station and force main; and  

 WHEREAS, completion of the North Diversion Sewer Lift Station project and upsizing of the treatment 
and storage capacity at the City membrane plant will reduce the amount of wastewater discharging from the 
main treatment plant into Oakland Bay and increase the production of reclaimed water, thereby increasing the 
water input to the Goldsborough Creek watershed, creating a benefit to aquifers, streams, and wetlands, all of 
which are primary goals of both the City and the Squaxin Island Tribe; and  

WHEREAS, purchase and sale agreements have been prepared, reviewed by the City Attorney, and signed by 
the property owners in preparation for the City to purchase the properties for a total of $405,000, to be paid 
out of the Wastewater Utility Fund. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington as follows: 

The City Manager is authorized to sign the purchase and sale agreements and all necessary documents relating 
to the real estate acquisition Lots 1 through 9 of Block 34 of the Mountain View Addition.  

 

INTRODUCED on the 3rd day of January 2023 and PASSED by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 
17th day of January 2023. 

 
                                                                           
ATTEST:                                                                __________________________________ 
 Mayor Onisko 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault 




























































	1 Agenda_20230117
	2 2023 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20230117
	4 Draft Minutes_20221104_Joint Council - County Commission
	5 November 2022 Monthly Financial Report FINAL
	6 Briefing Water-Sewer FCS Group Rate Study
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	7 Resolution No. 1257-1222 FCS Group Rate Study
	8 FCS Group Water- Sewer Rate & GFC Study Proposal
	City of Shelton
	Water & Sewer Revenue Requirement & GFC Study
	Task Plan
	Task 1 | Data Collection / Kickoff Meeting
	Task 2 | Policy Framework
	Task 3 | Water & Sewer Revenue Requirements Analyses
	Task 4 | Water, Reclaimed Water, & Sewer General Facilities Charges
	Task 5 | City Council Meetings
	Task 6 | Documentation
	Task 7 | Management Contingency

	Schedule
	Budget


	9 Briefing PW Yard Williams Architecture Design Contract Award
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	10 Resolution No. 1258-1222 Williams Architecture Design Contract Award
	11 Williams Architecture PW Maint. Yard Design Proposal
	12 Public Works PW Maint. Yard Conceptual Site Plan
	13 June 2022 Council Study Session PW Maint. Yard Presentation
	Public Works�Maintenance Yard�Master Plan
	HISTORY:
	History:  (Continued)
	History: (Continued)
	Site Options:
	Site Options: (Continued)
	Site Options: (Continued)
	Site Options: (Continued)
	Proposed Site:
	Proposed Site: (Continued)
	Proposed Site: (Continued)
	Existing Site Improvements:
	Project Costs:�Phase	Year		Cost		Description�1		202	2		$  65,000	Ex. yard covered storage�		2022-23	$  60,000	Ex. yard bathroom, break & locker rms�		2022-23	$100,000	New yard land use approval phase�		2022-23	$80,000	New yard design/permitting phase�		2023-24	$650,000	New yard construction�2		2027		TBD			Ph-2 design/permits�		2028		TBD			Ph-2 construction�3		2030-31	TBD			Ph-3 design & construction��Refer to Page 11 for location of the various phases of work.��Funding:�The funding required for the completion of the phases for the proposed improvements are to be split between the Water, Wastewater, Street, Storm, EM&R, Facilities, and Park funds.  
	Slide Number 14

	14 Ordinance 1994-0922 parks and open space standards briefing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	15 ORDINANCE NO 1994-0922 parks and open space standards
	16 Briefing Local Road Safety Plan Pedestrian Safety Improvements
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	17 Shelton HSIP Award Letter
	18 Shelton System Pedestrian Safety PAA
	19 Resolution No. 1254-1222 Systemic Pedestrian Safety Improvements
	20 Grant Submittal Preliminary Designs
	21 2022 City-Safety-Program-Awards
	22 Briefing_Brockdale Project Award
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	23 Resolution No 1255-1222_Brockdale Project Award
	24 Ltr-RecOfAward wBid Tabulation - Brockdale
	20221115_Bid Tabulation - Brockdale

	25 LP-STBG-Allocation-Distribution-Final-2021
	26 Olympic Highway North Overlay Budget Request
	27 Traffic Control Plan Brockdale Rd Resurfacing
	28 Briefing_Brockdale Contract Amendment No. 1
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	29 Resolution No 1256-1222_Brockdale Construction Management
	30 RH2 Supp Amnd No. 1_Brockdale
	Amnd No. 1_SOW_Brockdale SDC.docx
	Amnd No. 1_FEE_Brockdale SDC
	Amnd No. 1_Exhibit D_Brockdale SDC

	31 MCSO Jail Services Briefing action agenda
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	32 Shelton Municipal interlocal revised post negotiation 132023
	33 Wastewater Fund Property Acquisition Brief
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	34 Resolution No 1259-1222 Debban Property Aquisition
	35 Byron's Auto LLC Purchase & Sale Agreement
	36 Debban and Moore Purchase & Sale Agreeement



